
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




National Fish Habitat Board Meeting  


April 17 and 18, 2012 Draft Agenda 


The Nature Conservancy- Main Floor Conference Room 


4245 North Fairfax Drive, Arlington VA 


 (across the street from the Ballston Metro station on the Orange Line)  


 


 [This meeting will be available by conference call and web-ex.  


See instructions below under “additional information”] 


 


Tuesday, April 17   
8:30 – 8:45 Welcome and Introductions 


 
 Kelly Hepler (Board  


Chair/AK Dept. of Fish 
and Game) 


8:45- 9:15 Housekeeping 
Desired outcomes: 


 Board action to approve draft agenda and draft minutes. 


 Board review of future meeting schedules. 


 Board update of Chair and Vice-Chair terms. 


 Board announcement of 10 Waters to Watch. 


 Board discussion about 1) adding corporate 
representatives to the Board and 2) review term limits in 
charter. 
 


 
 
Tab 1a 
 
 
Tab 1b 
 
Tab1c 


 
 
Kelly Hepler (Board  
Chair/AK Dept. of Fish 
and Game) 


9:15-10:00 Board 2012 Priorities 
Desired outcomes: 


 Informational update to Board on proposed process for 
completing 2012 Board priorities. 


 Board action to recruit participation on the teams 
established to achieve the 2012 priorities. 


 
 
Tab 2 


 
 
Steve Perry (Board 
Vice-Chair/ New 
Hampshire Dept. of 
Fish and Game) 
 


10:00-10:15 Break 
 


  


10:15-11:15 Revised Action Plan and Rollout Strategy 
Desired outcomes: 


 Informational update on revised action plan. 


 Informational update on rollout strategy and proposed 
board participation. 


 
 
 
Tab 3 


 
Mike Andrews (Board 
Member - The Nature 
Conservancy)/ Matt 
Menashes (Board 
Staff - Association of 
Fish and Wildlife 
Agencies) 


11:15-12:00 Science and Data Committee Report: 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on progress towards completing 
strategy for 2015 Assessment. 


 Board action on propose S&D Committee Terms of 
Reference. 


 Informational update on other S&D Committee priority 
projects. 


 
 
Tab 4a 
 
Tab 4b, 4c 


 
Gary Whelan (Board 
Staff -Michigan 
Department of 
Natural Resources) 
/Andrea Ostroff 
(Board Staff - U.S. 
Geological Survey) 
 


12:00-1:30 Lunch 
 
 


  
 







 
1:30-2:00 Innovative Fund-raising for Fish Habitat Partnerships - the 


WNTI Approach 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update. 
 


 
 
 
NA 


 
 
Robin Knox and Erica 
Stock (Western Native 
Trout Initiative) 


2:00-3:30 FHP Presentation from the Eastern Brook Trout Joint 
Venture 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update. 
 


 
 
 
Tab 5 
 


 
 
 
Mark Hudy (Eastern 
Brook Trout Joint 
Venture -USDA Forest 
Service) 
 


2:30-2:45 Restoring Fish Passage While Disaster-proofing Communities 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update. 


 
 
Tab 6 


 
 
Susan Wells (U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service) 
 


2:45-3:00 Break   
3:00-3:45 Performance Evaluation Committee Report 


Desired outcomes: 


 Informational update on committee progress. 


 
 
Tab 7 


 
 
Steve Perry (Board 
Vice-Chair/ New 
Hampshire Fish and 
Game) 
 


3:45-4:15 Multi-state Conservation Grants and National Conservation 
Needs 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update. 


 
 
 
Tab 8 


 
 
 
Kelly Hepler (Board  
Chair/AK Dept. of Fish 
and Game) 


4:15-5:00 Report on 2012 FWS NFHP funding 
Desired outcomes: 


 Informational update on allocation of 2012 funds and 
the FY 2013 request. 


 
 
Tab 9 


 
 
Rowan Gould (Board 
Member) /Tom 
Busiahn (Board Staff-  
(U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service ) 
 


 







 


Wednesday, April 18   
8:30-9:00 Communications Committee Report: 


Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on progress towards 
Communications priority projects.  


 
 
NA 
 


 
Ryan Roberts (Board 
Staff – Association of 
Fish and Wildlife 
Agencies) 


9:00-9:15 Legislation Update: 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on Hill activity in support of 
NFHP. 


 
 
NA 


 
Gordon Robertson 
(Board Member – 
American Sportfishing 
Association) 


9:15-10:00 Federal Memorandum of Understanding:   
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on the MOU content and how it 
helps fish habitat conservation. 


 Board input on implementation of MOU. 


 
 
Tab 10 


 
 
Tom Busiahn (Board 
Staff – U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service) 


10:00-10:15 Break   
10:15-11:15 Coordination among LCC, JVs and FHPs 


Desired outcome: 
• Informational update on Congressional direction to FWS 


to integrate these partnership activities. 
• Board action on common messages about coordination 


among JV and Fish Habitat partnerships and committing 
to developing joint national conservation objectives. 


 
 
Tab 11a, 11b, 
11c 


 
 
Doug Austen (U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife 
Service)/Kelly Hepler 
(AKFG) 


11:15-12:00 NOAA Habitat Blueprint 
Desired outcome: 


 Informational update on NOAA’s Habitat Blueprint and 
opportunities to coordinate with NFHAP. 


 


 
 
Tab 12 


 
Brian Pawlak (NOAA-
Fisheries) 


12:15-1:30  Lunch   


2:00-3:00  Memorandum of Understanding Ceremony  (at The Nature Conservancy Headquarters building) 


3:00-4:00 Trout Unlimited sponsored reception (at The Nature Conservancy Headquarters building) 


6:00-8:00  Fishing for the Future Hill Reception 
Showcase and recognize fish habitat conservation efforts in the U.S. for Congressional members and 
their staff.   Rayburn House Office Building, Room B340.  Sponsored by the National Fish Habitat 
Partnership, American Fly Fishing Trade Association, Congressional Sportsmen’s Foundation, Theodore 
Roosevelt Conservation Partnership, American Sportfishing Association and Trout Unlimited.  (See 
Tab13 for directions) 


 







Additional Information: 


 Board Members and Staff Contacts (Tab 14) 


 


 Conference call and Web-ex instructions: 


Note:  Board members who wish to participate by conference call must get prior approval from 


the Chair. 


Call in:  866-707-9322 / participant passcode 3163558. 


Go join the online meeting : 


1. Go to 


https://mminsusa.webex.com/mminsusa/e.php?AT=WMI&EventID=95566837&PW=NNjgz


NzViZjZl&RT=MiM0  


2. Enter your name and email address.  


3. Enter the meeting password: habitat  


4. Click "Join Now".  


5. Follow the instructions that appear on your screen. 


 



https://mminsusa.webex.com/mminsusa/e.php?AT=WMI&EventID=95566837&PW=NNjgzNzViZjZl&RT=MiM0

https://mminsusa.webex.com/mminsusa/e.php?AT=WMI&EventID=95566837&PW=NNjgzNzViZjZl&RT=MiM0






National Fish Habitat Board  
April 17-18, 2012 meeting 


Tab1a 


 


 
 


Draft National Fish Habitat Board Conference Call Summary:  January 12, 
2012 
Members Present: 


Steve Perry ( NH FGD/ NEAFWA rep– Vice Chair 
and Acting Chair) 


Mike Andrews (TNC) 
Doug Boyd (SFBPC) 
Randy Fischer (PSMFC) 
Brad Gentner (Gentner Consulting Group/CCA 


rep) 
Rowan Gould (US FWS)– for Dan Ashe 


 
Joe Larscheid (IA DNR) 
Mike Leonard (ASA) – for Gordon Robertson  
Stan Moberly (AFS)  
Steve Moyer (TU) – for Chris Wood  
Ron Regan (AFWA) 
Eric Schwaab (NOAA Fisheries) 
Mike Stone (WY GFD/WAFWA rep) 
Anne Zimmerman (US FS)  


 


Members Absent: 
Kelly Hepler, Chris Horton, Bob Mahood, Fred Matt, Krystyna Wolniakowski  


 


Motions Approved by Consensus: 


 Agenda and October 2011 Meeting Minutes: Approved. 
 


 Further revise modified action plan objectives to reflect Board discussion and distribute to Board by e-
mail for final approval by January 23


, 
2012:  Approved. Board members made the following comments 


and requests regarding the modified objectives: 
 Eric Schwaab provided specific alternative language to the proposed Objective #1 to 


emphasize the role of the partnerships in achieving targeted conservation results through their 
strategic plans. 


 Several other Board members requested that the concept of setting national conservation 
direction and priorities through the Action Plan objectives be retained. 


 The Board agreed that both concepts are not in conflict and should be reflected in two 
separate objectives. 


 Mike Stone and Eric Schwaab offered specific edits to proposed Objective #4 that should be 
reflected in further revisions. 


 Agree to follow proposed revised timeline for finalizing action plan.  
 


 Proposed 2012 Priorities and Budget:  Approved with a reduction of the FWS-NFHAP column to 
$300,000 and associated reduction in carryover.  Discussion of the Priorities and Budget included the 
following points: 


 Mike Stone requested that a timeline be developed for implementing the priority to develop a 
strategy to obtain new funding sources (Priority #2). 


 Eric Schwaab requested that the science and data committee strategy for developing the 2015 
national assessment reflect an integrated approach across coastal and inland components. 
 


 Pacific Marine and Estuarine Partnership Application:  Approved.  Board member made the following 
comments. 


 Mike Leonard (ASA) requested that PMEP avoid any work that would impede recreational 
fishing access. 


 Lisa DeBruyckere confirmed that the work of the PMEP is entirely non-regulatory and that 
sportfishing representatives have been invited to sit on their Steering Committee. 


 Board staff will reflect these concerns in the approval letter to PMEP. 
 


Updates and Discussion: 


 July 2012 Board Meeting dates are moved to July 10-11 due to meeting space conflicts. 







National Fish Habitat Board  
April 17-18, 2012 meeting 


Tab1a 


 


 


Action items: 


 Amend proposed action plan objectives and re-distribute to Board via e-mail for final approval by 
January 23, 2012. 


 Board chair will assign teams to develop work-plans for each Board priority. 


 Board staff will work with ASA on language to reflect Board position regarding the importance of 
retaining recreational fishing access in the approval letter to PMEP about their application. 


 Board staff will make requested revisions to the 2012 Budget and provide as finalized back to the 
Board. 
 


Future 2012 meetings: 


 April 17 and 18 – Washington, DC 


 July 10 and 11 – Portland, ME 


 October 16-17 – Table Rock Lake, Missouri  
 


Board approved policy and/or technical documents: 


 2012 Board Priorities and Budget 


 Approved Pacific Marine and Estuarine Partnership application. 
 


Additional attendees: 
Karen Abrams, NOAA Fisheries-HQ and Board 


staff 
Tom Busiahn, FWS-HQ and Board staff 
Andrea Ostroff, USGS, Co-chair, Science and 


Data Committee 
Ryan Roberts, AFWA and Board       


Communications Director 
Gary Whelan, MI DNR, Co-chair, Science and 


Data Committee 
 


Tom Bigford, NOAA Fisheries – HQ 
Kristan Blackhart, NOAA Fisheries – HQ 
Jenna Carter, TNC – Western Division 
Nate Caswell – FWS, Ohio River Basin FHP 
Lisa DeBruyckere, Pacific Marine and Estuarine 


Fish Habitat Partnership  
 


 
Emily Greene – Atlantic Coast Fish Habitat 


Partnership 
Colin Hume, FWS-HQ 
Moe Nelson - NOAA 
Sue Rodman – AK Fish and Game 
Scott Roth, FWS-Mountain-Prairie Region 
Stan Allen, PSMFC 
Dan Shively, FWS-Northwest Region 
Korie Schaeffer, NOAA Fisheries –Southwest 


Region 
Jeff Sorenson, AZ Game and Fish 
John Stadler, NOAA Fisheries – Northwest 


Region 
Dr. Bill Taylor, Michigan State University 
Jeff Underwood, FWS- HQ 
John Wullschleger, NPS 
 


 


 








 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


1 
 


 


2012 Waters to Watch Projects and Descriptions 


 


1. Anchor River, Kenai Peninsula, Alaska 


 


FHP: Kenai Peninsula Fish Habitat Partnership (KPFHP) 


Description:  


To improve landscape-scale resilience for salmon in the Anchor River, Cook Inletkeeper, 


Kachemak Heritage Land Trust, and Kenai Watershed Forum will integrate KBRR and USFWS 


watershed models and spatially-explicit, remotely-sensed thermal data to help Kachemak 


Heritage Land Trust determine which parcels with key Chinook and coho salmon habitat are 


the highest priority for permanent conservation, and work together to create and implement an 


outreach strategy for public and private landowner contact.       


2012outcomes: 


This project will provide a unique opportunity to link state-of-the-art science with conservation 


planning and land protection strategies designed for perpetual habitat conservation to benefit 


salmon.  This project builds upon previous work to create corridors of riparian land on the 


Anchor River to preserve salmon habitat.   


Partners:  


Alaska Department of Fish and Game (ADFG) 


Cook Inletkeeper 


Kachemak Heritage Land Trust 


Kenai Watershed Forum 


The Nature Conservancy (TNC) 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (US FWS) 


National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) 


 


2. Bear Creek, Wisconsin 
 
FHP: Driftless Area Restoration Effort (DARE) 
 
Description: 
Bear Creek begins in Sauk County and flows for nearly 27 miles before entering the Wisconsin 
River, approximately 1.7 miles west of Lone Rock, in Richland County. It is currently classified by 
statute as a cold water stream in the upper reaches and as a warm water sport fishery in the 
lower 8.2 mile reach near the mouth.  Six major tributary streams and many small tributaries 
flow into Bear Creek.   
 


  







 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


2 
 


Years of erosion, has taken its toll on Bear Creek and several partners jumped into action to 
remediate the problem.  Wisconsin DNR worked with a private landowner to secure a public 
fishing easement which helped catapult the streambank work.   
 
2012 outcomes: 
Further enhancement of streambanks to restore natural stream flow over a 2 mile stretch. 
 
Partners: 
Trout Unlimited (TU) 
The Sauk County Land Conservation Department  
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WI DNR)   
USDA's Wildlife Habitat Incentive Program (WHIP) 
US Fish and Wildlife Service (US FWS) 
 


3. Boone River Watershed, Iowa 


 


FHP: Fishers and Farmers Partnership (FFP)  


 


Description: 


The Oxbow Restoration Project within the Boone River Watershed (BRW) includes White Fox 


Creek, Eagle Creek, Buck Creek and Lyons Creek (Hamilton and Wright Counties).  The BRW is a 


Mississippi River Basin Initiative (MRBI) watershed and the Iowa Department of Natural 


Resources (DNR) has designated the lower 26 miles as a “Protected Water Area.”  The Boone 


River is a tributary of the Des Moines River in north-central Iowa. 


 


Current and past land use practices in the Boone River Watershed have affected both stream 


hydrology and hydraulics.  As a result, these affects have degraded and fragmented oxbow 


habitat and have caused impairments to water quality.  Fishers & Farmers partners are working 


together with landowners to restore oxbow habitat critical to all fish species and especially to 


the federally listed endangered species.   


 


2012 outcomes: 


In the spring (2012), the perimeter of restored White Fox Creek oxbow will be planted with 


native grasses.  Fishers & Farmers has proposed this project for NFHP funding in 2012 for the 


restoration of additional oxbows.   


 


Partners: 


Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IA DNR) 


Hamilton and Wright Soil and Water Conservation Districts 


Iowa Soybean Association 


Iowa State University 


Landowners 







 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


3 
 


The Nature Conservancy (TNC) 


 US Fish and Wildlife Service Ecological Services (US FWS)  


 


 


4. Conner Creek Migration Barrier Removal, California 


 


FHP: California Fish Passage Forum(CA FPF) 


 


Description:   


The Conner Creek Project will provide full passage for all life stages of coho salmon and 


steelhead by removing two culverts. Conner Creek flows directly into the Trinity River, a 


tributary of the Klamath River. The first phase, accomplished in 2011, provides full fish and 


flood/debris passage; eliminates the potential for sediment; decreases the potential for 


upstream headcutting; improves flow capacity; reintroduces large wood routing in the stream, 


and restores natural stream function (see photos below). The second phase removal of the 


culvert at Red Hill Road will build on the benefits of the completed first phase of the project and 


is scheduled for summer 2012.The completion of both Conner Creek project opens 2.5 miles of 


habitat to adult and juvenile salmonids.  This project is part of a larger effort by the Five 


Counties Salmonid Conservation Program (5C). The 5C Program serves the counties of 


northwestern California - Del Norte, Humboldt, Mendocino, Siskiyou and Trinity. The goal of 5C 


is to formulate strategic land use conservation standards and implement practices to restore 


fisheries habitat. 


2012 outcomes: 


The First project, at Conner Creek Road, has been completed and will be actively monitored for 


three years. The second project at Red Hill Road will begin July of 2012.  


Partners: 


Northern California Resource Conservation and Development Council: Five Counties Salmonid 


Conservation Program 


California Coastal Conservancy 


California Department of Fish and Game Fisheries Restoration Grant Program 


Trinity County Department of Transportation 


National Association of Counties  


United States Forest Service Resource Advisory Committee (RAC) 


US Forest Service/National Fish and Wildlife Foundation  


National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) 


US Bureau of Reclamation-Trinity River Restoration Program Watershed Restoration Program 


LanMark Forestry 


 



http://www.fws.gov/midwest/endangered/fishes/TopekaShiner/index.html





 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


4 
 


5. Harpeth River, Tennessee 


 


FHP: Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership (SARP) 


 


Description: 


The Harpeth River, one of the most ecologically, culturally, historically, and recreationally 


significant rivers in Tennessee, drains nearly 900 square miles in Middle Tennessee and flows 


through one of the fastest growing areas in the country.  It is a state designated Scenic River in 


Davidson County outside, but easily accessible from, downtown Nashville. 


 


2012 outcomes: 


The Harpeth River Watershed Association (HRWA) secured $350,000 from collaborative 


funding programs of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Southeast Aquatic Resources 


Partnership, and the National Fish Habitat Partnership for activities that improve fish habitat 


and remove blockages to fish passage.  This project will remove the only barrier on the Harpeth 


River, a lowhead dam, and eliminate a nearly two mile long pool impoundment in order to 


reconnect 36 miles of river and restore riffle/run aquatic habitat that is presently submerged. 


 


Partners: 


Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership (SARP) 


US Fish & Wildlife Service (US FWS) 


Harpeth River Watershed Association (HRWA)  


City of Franklin, Tennessee  


Beaver Creek Hydrology, LLC (BCH)  


Tennessee Department of Environment & Conservation (TDEC) 


Tennessee Wildlife Resources Agency (TWRA) 


Tennessee Scenic Rivers Association (TSRA) 


United States Geological Survey (USGS) 


Vulcan Materials (local quarry) 


6. Rio Grande Tributaries, Texas 


 


FHP: Desert Fish Habitat Partnership (DFHP) 


 


Description: 


The Rio Grande, which runs through the heart of the northern Chihuahuan Desert in the Big 


Bend region of Texas, is the centerpiece of an emerging bi-national system of lands dedicated 


to conservation.  


Rio Grande tributary watersheds, such as Terlingua and Alamito creeks, are important 
spawning and refuge areas for imperiled fishes, including the federally listed Rio Grande silvery 
minnow. 



http://www.fws.gov/southeast/

http://www.sarpaquatic.org/

http://www.sarpaquatic.org/

http://fishhabitat.org/





 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


5 
 


 
2012 outcomes: 
The Alamito Creek restoration project is one of DFHP’s 2012 priorities.  Alamito Creek Preserve 
(The Preserve) contains a 3.5 mile section of scenic Alamito Creek that historically flowed much 
of the year. Perennial pools in this reach support populations of endemic fishes, amphibians 
and aquatic invertebrates, and a healthy riparian habitat. The Preserve and its segment of 
Alamito Creek are recognized by Texas Parks and Wildlife Department (TPWD) as meeting the 
criteria as an Ecologically Unique River and Stream Segment.  The Preserve will restore natural, 
perennial creek flow by removing large areas of invasive mesquite which is the dominant 
upland vegetation in the watershed and is partially responsible for lowering the water table in 
an already arid habitat. 
 
Partners: 
US Fish and Wildlife Service  (US FWS) 


 Texas Fish and Wildlife Conservation Office 
 Partners for Fish and Wildlife Program 


Texas Parks and Wildlife Department  


 


 


7. Rock Creek Coast, South Carolina 


FHP: Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership (ACFHP) 


 


Description: 


In South Carolina, shorelines adjacent to the Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway are subject to 


severe erosion due to heavy boat traffic and artificial channelization, which disrupts natural 


shoreline processes.  This erosion destroys or threatens oyster reef and salt marsh habitats.  In 


the project area, South Carolina Department of Natural Resources (SCDNR) has documented 


2.25miles of shoreline on the Ashepoo/Rock Creek cut as suffering from severe marsh erosion 


and in need of protection.   


 


According the SCDNR’s latest oyster resource survey, conducted between 2003 and 2008 using 


¼ meter digital aerial photography, there are no oysters on this shoreline and the marsh edge is 


as much as 35 meters from the water, with nothing but mudflats in front of it.  Previous work 


has demonstrated that bagged oyster shells provide a stable substrate for oyster recruitment 


and create self-sustaining reefs which stabilize the shoreline, promote sediment accretion, and 


foster salt marsh expansion in various waters and creeks within the waterway. 


2012 Outcomes: 


This project will rehabilitate tidal marsh areas experiencing degradation from boat traffic along 


the Intracoastal Waterway (AIWW), by constructing natural breakwaters using oyster reefs. 







 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


6 
 


Partners: 


South Carolina Department of Natural Resources’ (SCDNR) community-based oyster 


restoration program (SCORE) 


US Fish and Wildlife Service (US FWS) 


 Coastal Conservation Association (CCA) 


 


8. Table Rock Lake, Missouri 


 


FHP: Reservoir Fisheries Habitat Partnership (RFHP) 


 


Description: 


Table Rock Lake and Lake Taneycomo are located in the White River Hills region of the Ozark 


Plateau along the Missouri-Arkansas border.   At conservation pool, Table Rock Lake 


encompasses 43,100 acres with 745 miles of shoreline, and Lake Taneycomo covers just over 


2,000 acres. Table Rock Lake is the second largest of five reservoirs in the upper White River 


drainage basin which covers over 5,000 square miles in both Missouri and Arkansas. The U.S. 


Army Corps of Engineers estimates the recreational use of the lake at between 40 and 50 


million visitor visits annually with the economic value of the fishery estimated at $41 million 


(1997 estimate). Along with the Branson tourism industry, Table Rock and the other White 


River impoundments are responsible for hundreds of millions of dollars pumped into the local 


economies. 


 


This high-profile recreational development has come with an environmental cost. The large 


number of visitors to the area and population growth created water quality issues in Table Rock 


Lake. 


 


2012 Outcomes: 


Habitat improvements to the upper portion of Lake Taneycomo began in November 2011 and 


are ongoing in 2012.  These habitat improvements will include large rock structures designed to 


increase holding areas for trout and other fish, as well as increase locations for anglers to fish. 


Project publicity has been a success, with the cooperation of our various partners and other 


media outlets and businesses. 


 


Partners: 


Missouri Department of Conservation 


 National Fish and Wildlife Foundation 


 Bass Pro Shops 


Arkansas Game and Fish Commission 


US Fish and Wildlife Service  


 US Army Corps of Engineers 


Table Rock Lake Water Quality, Inc. 







 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


7 
 


 


 


9. Weber River, Utah 


 


FHP: Desert Fish Habitat Partnership/ Western Native Trout Initiative (DFHP/WNTI) 


 


Description: 


This project is intended to protect native fishes and improve water use efficiency for water 


companies in the Weber River drainage. It will re-connect 17.5 total river miles and allow native 


trout and sucker species to pass one mainstem diversion and two culvert barriers in two 


tributaries. 


 


Habitat fragmentation is the primary threat to the persistence of the bonneville cutthroat trout 


population. These barriers have fragmented mainstem and spawning habitats. Restoring 


connectivity at these sites is a critical step towards improving the resiliency and genetic 


diversity of this population.  


 


2012 outcomes: 


Facilitate upstream passage by slowing water velocity for as many species as possible in the 


Lower Weber River drainage with target species being Bonneville cutthroat trout and Bluehead 


sucker. 


 


Partners:  


Trout Unlimited (TU)  


Utah Division of Wildlife Resources 


Utah Dept. of Transportation 


 


10. White River, Vermont 


 


FHP: Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture (EBTJV) 


 


Description:   


Tropical Storm Irene devastated much of the upper reaches of the White River.  Rochester was 


one of those towns ravaged by sudden and historic rain falls that swept across Vermont on 


August 2011.  Roads and infrastructure where destroyed by the unprecedented stream flow.  


The town was stranded from the surrounding communities.  There is still much work left to be 


done to secure infrastructure throughout affected parts of the state. 


 


  







 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 1b 


 


8 
 


 


2012 outcomes: 


Funding from the National Fish and Habitat Action Plan’s Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture 


made possible the purchase of a 34 foot bridge, spanning the river.  The bridge will be placed in 


spring 2012.   


 


Partners: 


White River Partnership 


Town of Rochester, VT 


Vermont Department of Fish and Wildlife 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (US FWS) 


U.S. Forest Service (USFS) 


Trout Unlimited (TU) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 








Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006  
Revised April 19, 2007, and  October 13, 2010 


 


1 
 


Charter 
National Fish Habitat Board 


 
I. BACKGROUND  
The National Fish Habitat Board (hereafter “Board”) is responsible for carrying out a cooperative 
nationwide program to conserve (protect, restore and enhance) the habitats of the Nation’s marine and 
freshwater fish populations. The Board is a voluntary association of public and private sector entities 
that serves as the body overseeing the implementation of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan (“Plan”).  
 
II. MISSION and GOALS  
The purpose of the Board is to promote, oversee, and coordinate implementation of the Plan.  
The Board’s mission is to conserve (protect, restore and enhance) the nation’s fish and aquatic 
communities through partnerships that foster fish habitat conservation and improve the quality of life 
for the American people.  
This mission will be achieved by:  


• Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats.  
• Approving and supporting Fish Habitat Partnerships and fostering new efforts.  
• Establishing interim and long-term national fish habitat conservation goals and supporting 


regional fish habitat conservation goals.  
• Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for fish habitat conservation.  
• Measuring and communicating the status and needs of fish habitats.  


 
The Board’s goals are to:  


• Protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic systems.  
• Prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been adversely affected.  
• Reverse declines in the quality and quantity of aquatic habitats to improve the overall health of 


fish and other aquatic organisms.  
• Increase the quality and quantity of fish habitats that support a broad natural diversity of fish 


and other aquatic species.  
• Increase fish and therefore fishing opportunities.  


 
In furtherance of the Plan’s mission, the Board's role is to:  


• Coordinate agency and stakeholder involvement at the national level.  
• Develop appropriate policies and guidance for recognizing Fish Habitat Partnerships.  
• Develop processes to prioritize and deliver National Fish Habitat Action Plan funds to the 


partnerships.  
•  Develop criteria for funding and related resources.  
• Establish national partnerships or other arrangements that provide funding and other resources 


to the Fish Habitat Partnerships and other efforts of the Plan.  







Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006  
Revised April 19, 2007, and  October 13, 2010 


 


2 
 


• Establish national measures of success and evaluation criteria guidelines for Fish Habitat 
Partnerships and facilitate Fish Habitat Partnership adaptation of these guidelines for their 
unique systems.  


• Report to Congress, States and other partners on the status and accomplishments of the 
National Fish Habitat Action Plan.  


• Carry out such administrative, organizational, or procedural matters as are necessary or proper.  
 
III. BOARD BYLAWS  
 
A. Appointment – The Board will be appointed by the Executive Leadership Team (ELT). The membership 
of the ELT shall consist of: the President and Executive Director of the Association of Fish and Wildlife 
Agencies; Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration; and 
the Director of the Fish and Wildlife Service, Department of the Interior. The ELT will have final 
responsibility for appointment and, if necessary, removal of all Board members, except those serving by 
virtue of their office.  
 
B. Membership  
 
1. Members--The Board shall consist of up to 22 members.  
 
2. State Government Representatives--The Board shall include five state fish and wildlife agency 
representatives and the Executive Director of the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies. Each of the 
four regional Associations of Fish and Wildlife Agencies (Northeast, Southeast, Midwest, and Western) 
shall nominate a representative to the ELT for approval. The fifth state representative will be appointed 
by the ELT. These representatives shall be selected to create an appropriate balance between inland and 
coastal states. The Executive Director of the Association shall serve by the virtue of his or her office.  
 
3. Federal Government Representatives.—The Board shall include up to five federal agency 
representatives. These shall include the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration, and the Director of the Fish and Wildlife Service, Department of the 
Interior, who shall serve by virtue of their office.  
 
4. Indian Tribal Representation—The Board shall include at least one representative from an Indian 
tribal or native Alaskan government.  
 
5. The National Fish and Wildlife Foundation and the American Fisheries Society each shall nominate a 
representative for approval by the ELT.  
 
6. The remaining eight members shall be appointed to ensure the Board includes representation from 
the following range of interests: sportfishing, commercial fishing, sportfishing industry, academic, and 
land and aquatic resource conservation organizations. In addition, these members shall be appointed to 







Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006  
Revised April 19, 2007, and  October 13, 2010 


 


3 
 


ensure the Board includes a balance of governmental and non-governmental organizations and a 
balance of freshwater and marine interests.  
 
C. Terms of Service  
 
1. Normal Term--Except as provided in paragraphs (3) and (4) of this Subsection, the term of office of a 
member of the Board is three years.  
 
2. Members whose terms have expired shall serve until replaced.  
 
3. Initial Appointment—The initial appointment of the charter Board shall be for a term of three years.  
 
4. Transitional Re-appointment – Except for the members appointed under paragraphs (2), (4) and (5) of 
Section III.B., four shall be re-appointed initially for a term of one year, four shall be re-appointed for a 
term of two years, and up to five shall be re-appointed for a term of three years. After these transitional 
terms, terms will be as provided in paragraph (1) of this Subsection.  
 
5. Vacancies—Any vacancy among the Board members shall be filled through appointment by the ELT, 
and any Board member appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve for the remainder of that term for which 
his or her predecessor was appointed.  
 
D. Procedures  
 
1. Selection of Board Chair-- At the first meeting of the Board, the Board shall elect a Chair from the 
state government membership of the Board. Each subsequent Chair shall be elected by the Board from 
among the state government representatives.  
 
2. Term of Chair—The term of any Chair shall be two years, provided that any Chair may serve 
successive terms. No Chair shall serve more than 3 consecutive terms.  
 
3. Meetings--The Board shall meet at the call of the Chair at least twice a year. The Chair shall endeavor 
to establish a proposed meeting schedule identifying potential meeting dates within the twelve month 
period following each meeting of the Board. Except as provided below, the Chair must give Board 
members at least two months’ notice of a Board meeting and shall provide a draft agenda at that time. 
Notice must be provided in writing, but may be delivered by email or facsimile to each Board member. 
The Chair with due cause may call the Board for emergency meetings, provided, however, that business 
of the meeting must be restricted to the reasons for which the meeting is called.  
 
Board meetings shall be open to the public, provided, however, that the Board may meet in executive 
sessions closed to the public to discuss personnel, legal matters, or any other matter of a private or 
necessarily confidential nature. These closed sessions shall be clearly identified in the meeting 







Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006  
Revised April 19, 2007, and  October 13, 2010 


 


4 
 


announcement. Notification of Board meetings shall be made to members of the Partners Coalition and 
other interested parties.  
 
4. Quorum--A majority of the current membership of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business.  
 
5. Participation and Attendance--If a Board member is not able to attend a Board meeting he or she may 
appoint a designee provided an official proxy is signed and presented to the Board Chair. A Board 
member may designate another Board member to hold his/her proxy, but no Board member may 
hold more than 1 proxy. If a Board member, other than a Board member who serves by virtue of office, 
fails to attend three consecutive regularly scheduled meetings, the Chair, in consultation with the ELT, 
may remove that person from the Board and request that the ELT appoint a replacement. A Board 
member may participate in a Board meeting by conference call with the prior approval of the Chair. If a 
Board member, other than a Board member who serves by virtue of office, attends three consecutive 
regularly scheduled meetings by conference call, the Chair, in consultation with the ELT, may remove 
that person from the Board and request that the ELT appoint a replacement.  
 
6. Voting--The Board should strive to achieve consensus on all actions proposed. If consensus cannot be 
achieved within the time frame allotted to the action on the agenda, all actions must be approved by 
the vote of two-thirds of all members present and voting. Each Board member shall have one vote. All 
voting shall proceed under Robert’s Rules of Order. The Board may extend the discussion period for 
items on the agenda, or consider items not on the proposed agenda for a meeting, provided that such 
changes to the agenda must be approved by a vote at the time they are proposed.  
 
7. Other Procedures--The Board shall establish other procedures as needed to schedule meetings, 
develop agendas, and otherwise facilitate and conduct business, including those procedures or matters 
required to comply with any requirements resulting from incorporation of the Board under law.  
 
8. Chair’s Responsibilities—In addition to such duties established elsewhere in these bylaws, the Chair 
shall:  


a. Prepare a written agenda of all matters to be considered by the Board at any meeting;  
b. Prepare and issue all notices, including notices of meetings, required to be given to the Board 


and public;  
c. Preside at all meetings of the Board and, unless otherwise directed by the Board, present items 


of business for consideration by the Board in the order listed on the agenda for the meeting;  
d. Conduct all meetings in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order and these bylaws;  
e. 4 Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006 Revised April 19, 2007  
f. Appoint committees as required; and  
g. Perform other duties as requested by the Board.  


 







Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006  
Revised April 19, 2007, and  October 13, 2010 


 


5 
 


9. Appointment of Vice-Chair—The Board shall elect a Vice-Chair from among the Board membership. In 
the absence of the Chair, or in the event of the Chair’s inability to act, or a conflict of interest for the 
Chair, the Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair, and when so acting, shall have all the powers 
of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Chair. The Vice-Chair shall perform such other duties as 
from time to time may be assigned by the Chair or by the ELT. The term of the Vice-Chair shall be the 
same as the term of the Chair.  
 
E. Board Responsibilities  
 


1. Coordination - The Board will coordinate agency and stakeholder involvement at the national 
level and establish national partnerships that provide funding and other resources to the 
Partnerships and other efforts of the Plan.  


 
2. Conservation Goals and Objectives - The Board will develop and amend, as appropriate, specific 


national fish habitat conservation goals and objectives with the advice from the Science and 
Data Committee established pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subsection F of this Section.  


 
3. Partnerships - The Board will develop and amend, as appropriate, a strategy to encourage the 


formation of Fish Habitat Partnerships (“Partnerships”). This strategy will be updated 
periodically to include new information on fish habitat status and the status of existing 
Partnerships.  


 
4. Recognition of Partnerships - The Board shall develop and amend, as appropriate, criteria for 


recognition of Partnerships. The Board shall distribute the criteria, establish a process for parties 
to use in seeking recognition as a Partnership, and maintain a publicly accessible registry of 
recognized Partnerships. Such criteria shall include provisions to promote transparency and the 
highest standards of ethical conduct in the decision-making of the Board regarding recognition 
of Partnerships.  


 
5. Evaluation Criteria- The Board will establish national measures of success and evaluation criteria 


guidelines for Partnerships  
 


6. Funding - The Board will develop and implement strategies to increase public and private 
funding for fish habitat conservation, provided that the responsibility for implementation of 
such strategies by any Board member shall be limited by any legal or administrative restrictions 
that may apply to the activities of any such member.  


 
7. Report - The Board will develop a strategy (including funding) to support development of a 


“Status of Fish Habitats in the United States” report to Congress States, and other partners. The 
report shall be completed in 2010, and every 5 years after.  


 







Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006  
Revised April 19, 2007, and  October 13, 2010 


 


6 
 


F. Coordination and Support  
 
1. Staff–The Board shall accept staff support provided by The Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies, 
the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s National Marine Fisheries Service, and the U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service. The Chair, in consultation with the contributing entities, shall act on behalf of 
the Board in directing the activities of the staff. The Chair, in consultation with the Board, may accept 
additional staff or other support from other entities. The contributing entities shall use their best efforts 
to provide common office space for all Board staff and take such other measures as they deem 
appropriate to facilitate communication, cohesiveness, and efficient operations for the benefit of the 
Board.  
 
2. Science and Data Committee --The Board shall establish a Science and Data Committee chaired by a 
State representative or another entity recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board, and 
consisting of at least two State agency representatives, two Federal agency representatives, two non-
governmental organization representatives, and two academic representatives. All Committee members 
will have demonstrated knowledge of the Plan’s science foundation. The Board shall solicit information 
from the Science and Data Committee and incorporate that information, and other appropriate 
information, into the strategies and goals developed by the Board. The Board will support the Science 
and Data Team by providing necessary staff, funding, data and other resources needed to complete the 
national assessments and reports called for in the Plan.  
 
3. Federal Caucus–The Board shall coordinate with the broadest possible range of Federal agencies 
through the Federal Caucus, a partnership of Federal agencies organized to coordinate Federal 
participation in the implementation of the Action Plan, and make every attempt to expand the Federal 
Caucus to include all Federal agencies involved with fish habitat. The Board shall coordinate with the 
Federal agencies to develop and implement habitat protection and rehabilitation strategies at national 
and regional scales, to ensure that Federal agencies policies are consistent with the Plan, and to 
otherwise support implementation of the Plan.  
 
4. Partners Coalition--The Board shall coordinate with the broadest possible range of stakeholders and 
other interested parties to increase involvement and support for coordinated fish habitat conservation 
at national and regional scales.  
 
G. Committees  
The Board may establish and otherwise manage committees as needed to carry out the responsibilities 
of the Board. Such committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board.  
 
H. Board and Committee Expenses  
Board and Committee members will not be compensated for their time working on Board or Committee 
business or traveling to meetings. Travel expenses generally should be borne by the agency or other 







Adopted by the National Fish Habitat Board on September 22, 2006  
Revised April 19, 2007, and  October 13, 2010 


 


7 
 


entity that employs the Board or Committee member, but reimbursement arrangements may be made 
if funds for this purpose are available.  
 
IV. Procedure to Amend Charter  
The Board may decide to amend this charter by consensus or a two-thirds vote of all members present 
and voting. Any proposed change to this charter must be noted on the draft agenda that is sent out at 
the time the meeting is scheduled.  








 


National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab 2 


 
 


1 


 


Title:   2012 Board Priorities 


 


Desired outcome:  An informational update to the Board on a proposed process for 


completing 2012 Board priorities; and, Board action to recruit participation on the 


teams established to achieve the 2012 priorities. 


 


Background:  During its January 12, 2012 conference call, the Board approved four 


new National Fish Habitat Action Plan objectives (Tab 2).  In conjunction with 


establishing these new Action Plan objectives, it was recognized there is a need for 


the Board to establish more detailed, measurable activities on an annual basis in the 


form of a work plan.  To begin addressing this need, the Board adopted six priorities 


for 2012 (Tab 2) during the January teleconference.  However, since the new Action 


Plan objectives and 2012 Board priorities were being developed concurrently; not all 


of the priorities can be linked to one of the four objectives.  In subsequent years the 


Action Plan objectives will serve as the basis for ascertaining the Board’s priorities 


and these priorities will guide the Board’s budget determinations. 


 


Recommendation: Task the Board’s standing and ad hoc committees (consisting of 


National Fish Habitat Partnership Board members, staff, partners, and others) with 


developing work plans that address the following Action Plan objectives and/or 


Board priorities: 


 


Draft Proposal 


 


Science and Data Committee 


 


o Develop and initiate implementation of a strategy to refine the 2010 National Fish 


Habitat Assessment (Action Plan Objective 4 and Board Priority 6). 


o Develop standard effectiveness measures for conservation actions used to address 


nationwide fish habitat focus areas (Action Plan Objective 1 and Board Priority 


4). 


 


Communications Committee 


 


o Increase public awareness of the role healthy fish habitats play in the quality of 


life and economic well-being of local communities (Action Plan Objective 3). 


o Communicate the conservation outcomes produced collectively by Fish Habitat 


Partnerships as well as new opportunities and voluntary approaches for 







 


National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab 2 


 
 


2 


 


conserving fish habitat to the public and conservation partners (Action Plan 


Objective 5). 


 


Legislative Team 


 


o Advancement of the National Fish Habitat Partnership legislative and policy 


agenda (Board Priority 1). 


 


Funding Committee 


 


o Development of strategies focused on obtaining new funding sources that support 


implementation of the National Fish Habitat Partnership (Board Priority 3). 


 


Fish Habitat Partnership Committee 


 


o Enhancement of the leadership, managerial, and conservation delivery capacity of 


Fish Habitat Partnerships (Board Priority 2). 


o Facilitation of stronger communications and interactions with and among Fish 


Habitat Partnerships as detailed in the 2012 Communications Strategy and Action 


Plan (Board Priority 5). 


 


Habitat Conservation Committee (New) 


 


o Establish a consensus set of national conservation strategies as a framework to 


guide future actions and investment by the Fish Habitat Partnerships (Action Plan 


Objective 2). 


 


Each committee will provide a status update to the Board at its July 2012 Meeting 


and will submit a final report on their accomplishments and recommendations at the 


Board’s October 2012 Meeting. 


 


Reference material: The following Action Plan objectives and Board priorities 


should be placed in Tab 2. 


 







 


National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab 2 


 
 


3 


 


National Fish Habitat Action Plan: New Objectives 


1. Achieve measurable habitat conservation results through strategic actions of Fish 


Habitat Partnerships that improve ecological condition, restore natural 


processes, or prevent the decline of intact and healthy systems leading to better fish 


habitat conditions and increased fishing opportunities. 


 


2. Establish a consensus set of national conservation strategies as a framework to guide 


future actions and investment by the Fish Habitat Partnerships by 2013. 


 


3. Broaden the community of support for fish habitat conservation by increasing fishing 


opportunities, fostering the participation of local communities – especially young 


people – in conservation activities, and raising public awareness of the role healthy 


fish habitats play in the quality of life and economic well-being of local communities. 


 


4. Fill gaps in the National Fish Habitat Assessment and its associated database to 


empower strategic conservation action supported by broadly available scientific 


information, and integrate socio-economic data in the analysis to improve people’s 


lives in a manner consistent with fish habitat conservation goals. 


 


5. Communicate the conservation outcomes produced collectively by Fish Habitat 


Partnerships as well as new opportunities and voluntary approaches for conserving 


fish habitat to the public and conservation partners. 


 


National Fish Habitat Board: 2012 Priorities 


 


Priority 1: Advance the National Fish Habitat Partnership legislative and policy agenda 


by supporting passage of the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act and the 


adoption of the Federal Secretarial Order between the Departments of Interior, 


Commerce and Agriculture. 


 


Priority 2: Enhance the leadership, managerial, and conservation delivery capacity of 


Fish Habitat Partnerships. 


 


Priority 3: Adopt strategies focused on obtaining new funding sources that support 


implementation of the National Fish Habitat Partnership. 


 


Priority 4: Develop standard effectiveness measures for conservation actions used to 


address nationwide fish habitat focus areas. 


 


Priority 5: Facilitate stronger communications and interactions with and among Fish 


Habitat Partnerships as detailed in the 2012 Communications Strategy and 


Action Plan. 


Priority 6: Develop and initiate implementation of a strategy to refine the 2010 National 


Fish Habitat Assessment for 2012. 








 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 4a 


 


 


1 


 


National Fish Habitat Partnership 


Science and Data Committee Action Update 
April 2012 


 
1. Assessment Strategy – The National Fish Habitat Assessment Strategy (Strategy) 


has had three revisions completed on it by the Science and Data Committee 


(Committee) since the October 2011 Board meeting.  The process for completion 


is as follows: 


a. Review 3
rd


 Draft at Science and Data Committee Meeting – April 2-5, 


2012 in Kerr, Texas 


b. Complete final draft Strategy by May 1. 


c. Provide final draft Strategy to FHPs, Board, and other interested parties by 


May 7 with a 1 month review period. 


d. Complete final Strategy by June 28 for submission to July 2012 Board 


Briefing Book. 


e. Seek Board approval of Strategy at the July 2012 then implement 


approved strategy. 


2. Science and Data Committee Meeting – The Science and Data Committee will be 


meeting from April 2-5, 2012 in Kerr, Texas.  This will be the first full committee 


meeting in 3 years.  Key agenda items include: revision of Strategy; review of 


current Assessment work; review of key information and data system gaps; 


approaches for measuring effectiveness, determining how to integrate 


socioeconomic data; Committee membership gaps; and Committee 


communications. 


3. Gary Whelan participated in the interview process for the new Inland Assessment 


Team Post-Doctorate Position at Michigan State University.  After an extended 


search, a suitable candidate has been found.  This process again showed that 


individuals with the unique needed skill set required to evaluate fish habitat at a 


landscape scale are rare commodities and are in high demand. 


4. Committee Co-Chairs participated in all Board staff calls along with the January 


Board conference call. 


 


Submitted by: 


 


Andrea Ostroff, NFHP Science and Data Committee Co-Chair 


Gary Whelan, NFHP Science and Data Committee Co-Chair 


April 2012 








SCIENCE AND DATA COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND OPERATION 


 


PAGE 1 OF 2 DRAFT FOR BOARD APPROVAL    APRIL 2012 
TAB 4B 


 


NATIONAL SCIENCE AND DATA COMMITTEE PURPOSE:  
Provide scientific and data management expertise and oversight to advance the goals and objectives of 
the National Fish Habitat Board (Board) in a scientifically sound and strategic manner. 


 
COMMITTEE MEMBER DUTIES AND ROLES 


1. Provide advice to the Board on setting future science and data priorities. 
2. Develop strategies for executing and implementing Board science and data priorities by 


ensuring the direction, purpose, and needs for future national assessments are well-defined. 
3. Oversee, coordinate, and review the development of the national fish habitat assessment 


including, but not limited to, assisting the assessment teams with relevant contacts, data 
acquisition, and expertise as needed. 


4. Provide expert advice and support on habitat and data issues to the Board, National Assessment 
Teams, and Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHP) to ensure scientific data conformity and 
coordination between FHPs, partner agencies, and the National Science and Data Committee.  
Duties may include development and review of: 


a. Scientific and data analysis methods 
b. Data transfer methods, standards, and policies 


5. Review FHP strategic plans along with their associated science and data work plans as 
requested by and for the Board 


a. Examine FHP science and data work for the 5 year FHP Board review 
b. Review new FHP applications (specifically the strategic plan) concerning proposed 


science and data efforts for the Board 
6. Each member will have liaison opportunities between the National Science and Data Committee 


and FHPs to facilitate information exchange and communication of science and data efforts 
between groups 


7. Chair ad hoc workgroups of committee members and non-members to address specific tasks as 
needed. 


8. Assist the Committee’s co-chairs in developing needed materials for annual updates to the 
Board on accomplishments and progress towards meeting significant science and data 
objectives. 


 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 


1. Total committee size will be up to 20 individuals 
a. Up to 10 members having greater science expertise 
b. Up to 10 members having greater data management expertise 


2. The committee will have representatives with expertise in varied habitats and diverse science 
and data experience/backgrounds including to ensure expert opinion is available for diverse 
areas of the United States from the mountains to the continental shelf.  Representatives 
needed have expertise with scientific analysis and data processing at various scales including 
large landscape and national scales, expertise in socioeconomic analysis, and established 
relationships with partners and stakeholders that can facilitate advancing the Committee’s 
objectives. 


3. Committee appointments will be for two years.  Terms of individual committee members will be 
reviewed every 2 years by the Committee co-chairs to ensure member’s expertise aligns with 
the National Science and Data Committee’s tasks assigned by the Board to implement the 







SCIENCE AND DATA COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND OPERATION 


 


PAGE 2 OF 2 DRAFT FOR BOARD APPROVAL    APRIL 2012 
TAB 4B 


 


Science and Data Strategy.   Members may be reappointed if the committee member has the 
desire, expertise, and ability to continue participation in the Committee’s work. 


4. The committee will make every effort to have 8 representatives from the FHPs to include two 
from each Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies’ regional associations.  Requests for FHP 
participation shall align with timeline and objectives outlined in the Science Assessment 
Strategy, to further ensure the direction, purpose, and needs are addressed. 


5. Membership selection shall occur through an iterative process between both of the Committee 
co-chairs and the potential participants to ensure expertise and committee membership 
structure and terms are fully considered. 


6. The Board and the Science and Data Committee Co-chairs will identify and appoint a Committee 
Liaison to provide Board leadership and coordination back to the Board.  Appointment shall be 
reviewed every 2 years. 


 
COMMITTEE CO-CHAIRS 


1. The committee will be co-chaired by two individuals.  One chair will have more of an emphasis 
on science and the other chair will have more of an emphasis on data. At minimum, one of the 
co-chairs will be from a state fisheries agency. 


2. Committee co-chair appointments will be selected by the Board Chair.  Co-chair appointments 
will be evaluated by the Board Chair every four years.  Terms between two co-chairs will be 
staggered to ensure continuity. 


3. Co-chairs are a part of the Board staff and are expected to attend all Board and Board staff 
meetings.  


4. Both co-chairs will share in all of the tasks required to properly operate the Science and Data 
Committee including providing, at minimum, annual updates to the Board on accomplishments 
and progress towards meeting significant science and data objectives. 


5. Each co-chair shall appoint a vice-chair.  In the absence of the co-chair, or in the event of the 
Chair’s inability to act, the Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the co-chair.  The Vice-Chair 
shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Chair.   The term of 
the Vice-Chair shall be the same as the term of the Chair.  


 
MEETINGS AND DECISIONS 


1. The Science and Data Committee will strive to meet face-to-face at least annually as a group. 
2. The committee will conduct at minimum bi-monthly conference calls to conduct business. 
3. The committee will routinely hold a conference call or meeting scheduled at minimum 1 month 


prior to each Board meeting.  Timing and frequency will provide the committee opportunity to 
assist with development and review of informational and decisional materials presented to the 
Board. 


4. For effective transparency and communication, items requiring Science and Data Committee 
review, comment, and decision will be documented.   


a. Documentation will include: background on the issue; decision options; decision-making 
process; and final decision.   


 








DRAFT SCIENCE AND DATA COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND OPERATION 


 


PAGE 1 OF 2 DRAFT FOR BOARD APPROVAL- WITH COMMENT DISPOSITION    APRIL 2012 
TAB 4C 


 


NATIONAL SCIENCE AND DATA COMMITTEE PURPOSE:  
Provide scientific and data management expertise and oversight to advance the goals and objectives of 
the National Fish Habitat Board (Board) in a scientifically sound and strategic manner. 


 
COMMITTEE MEMBER DUTIES AND ROLES 


1. Provide advice to the Board on setting future science and data priorities. 
2. Develop strategies for executing and implementing Board science and data priorities by 


ensuring the direction, purpose, and needs for future national assessments are well-defined. 
3. Oversee, coordinate, and review the development of the national fish habitat assessment 


including, but not limited to, assisting the assessment teams with relevant contacts, data 
acquisition, and expertise as needed. 


4. Provide expert advice and support on habitat and data issues to the Board, National Assessment 
Teams, and Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHP) to ensure scientific data conformity and 
coordination between FHPs, partner agencies, and the National Science and Data Committee.  
Duties may include development and review of: 


a. Scientific and data analysis methods 
b. Data transfer methods, standards, and policies 


5. Review FHP strategic plans along with their associated science and data work plans as 
requested by and for the Board 


a. Examine FHP science and data work for the 5 year FHP Board review 
b. Review new FHP applications (specifically the strategic plan) concerning proposed 


science and data efforts for the Board 
6. Each member will have liaison opportunities between the National Science and Data Committee 


and FHPs to facilitate information exchange and communication of science and data efforts 
between groups 


7. Chair ad hoc workgroups of committee members and non-members to address specific tasks as 
needed. 


8. Assist the Committee’s co-chairs in developing needed materials for annual updates to the 
Board on accomplishments and progress towards meeting significant science and data 
objectives. 


 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 


1. Total committee size will be up to 20 individuals 
a. Up to 10 members having greater science expertise 
b. Up to 10 members having greater data management expertise 


2. The committee will have representatives with expertise in varied habitats and diverse science 
and data experience/backgrounds including to ensure expert opinion is available for diverse 
areas of the United States from the mountains to the continental shelf.  Representatives 
needed have expertise with scientific analysis and data processing at various scales including 
large landscape and national scales, expertise in socioeconomic analysis, and established 
relationships with partners and stakeholders that can facilitate advancing the Committee’s 
objectives. 


3. Committee appointments will be for two years.  Terms of individual committee members will be 
reviewed every 2 years by the Committee co-chairs to ensure member’s expertise aligns with 
the National Science and Data Committee’s tasks assigned by the Board to implement the 


Comment [ACO1]: Board Comment: Ensuring 
that the direction, purpose and needs for the 2015 
National Assessment are well defined to better 
inform the membership and structure of the S&D 
Committee  
Addressed: Added highlighted text; also addressed 
in #4 &5 under Committee Membership) 
 


Comment [ACO2]: Board Comment:  
Clarifying the role of the committee in ensuring 
conformity and coordination between partnerships 
and national S&D committee 
Addressed: Added highlighted text 


Comment [ACO3]: Board Comment:  
Committee size seemed large  
Addressed: Added highlighted text 


Comment [ACO4]: Board Comment:   
Clarifying  the expertise needed on the committee 
and requested the inclusion of socio-economic 
expertise 
Addressed: Added highlighted text 
 







DRAFT SCIENCE AND DATA COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND OPERATION 


 


PAGE 2 OF 2 DRAFT FOR BOARD APPROVAL- WITH COMMENT DISPOSITION    APRIL 2012 
TAB 4C 


 


Science and Data Strategy.   Members may be reappointed if the committee member has the 
desire, expertise, and ability to continue participation in the Committee’s work. 


4. The committee will make every effort to have 8 representatives from the FHPs to include two 
from each Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies’ regional associations.  Requests for FHP 
participation shall align with timeline and objectives outlined in the Science Assessment 
Strategy, to further ensure the direction, purpose, and needs are addressed. 


5. Membership selection shall occur through an iterative process between both of the Committee 
co-chairs and the potential participants to ensure expertise and committee membership 
structure and terms are fully considered. 


6. The Board and the Science and Data Committee Co-chairs will identify and appoint a Committee 
Liaison to provide Board leadership and coordination back to the Board.  Appointment shall be 
reviewed every 2 years.   


 
COMMITTEE CO-CHAIRS 


1. The committee will be co-chaired by two individuals.  One chair will have more of an emphasis 
on science and the other chair will have more of an emphasis on data. At minimum, one of the 
co-chairs will be from a state fisheries agency. 


2. Committee co-chair appointments will be selected by the Board Chair.  Co-chair appointments 
will be evaluated by the Board Chair every four years.  Terms between two co-chairs will be 
staggered to ensure continuity. 


3. Co-chairs are a part of the Board staff and are expected to attend all Board and Board staff 
meetings.  


4. Both co-chairs will share in all of the tasks required to properly operate the Science and Data 
Committee including providing, at minimum, annual updates to the Board on accomplishments 
and progress towards meeting significant science and data objectives. 


5. Each co-chair shall appoint a vice-chair.  In the absence of the co-chair, or in the event of the co-
chair’s inability to act, the vice-chair shall perform the duties of the co-chair.  The vice-Chair 
shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Committee co-
Chair. The term of the vice-chair(s) shall be the same as the term of the co-chair.  
 


MEETINGS AND DECISIONS 
1. The Science and Data Committee will strive to meet face-to-face at least annually as a group. 
2. The committee will conduct at minimum bi-monthly conference calls to conduct business. 
3. The committee will routinely hold a conference call or meeting scheduled at minimum 1 month 


prior to each Board meeting.  Timing and frequency will provide the committee opportunity to 
assist with development and review of informational and decisional materials presented to the 
Board. 


4. For effective transparency and communication, items requiring Science and Data Committee 
review, comment, and decision will be documented.   


a. Documentation will include: background on the issue; decision options; decision-making 
process; and final decision.   


 


Comment [ACO5]: Board Comment:  
Requesting Fish Habitat Partnership representation  
Addressed: Added highlighted text; also addressed 
in #5, Membership selection 


Comment [ACO6]: Board Comment:   
Ensuring that the direction, purpose and needs for 
the 2015 National Assessment are well defined to 
better inform the membership and structure of the 
S&D Committee 
Addressed: Added highlighted text to  #4, also 
addressed with addition of #5, Membership 
selection 


Comment [ACO7]: Board Comment:  
Including a description for the membership 
selection process  
Addressed: Added highlighted text 


Comment [ACO8]: Board Comment:  
Identifying a Board liaison to provide Board 
leadership and coordination back to the Board  
Addressed: Added highlighted text 


Comment [ACO9]: No Board Comment, but 
added highlighted text to address committee 
succession planning 








 


 


 


Conserving the Eastern Brook Trout: 


Action Strategies  
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


Prepared by:  


Conservation Strategy/Habitat Work Group  


Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture  


 


 


January 2011 


 







 2 


Table of Contents 
 


I. Executive Summary 


 


II. Introduction 


 


III. Range-wide Status of Brook Trout Populations 


 


IV. Regional and State-level Status of Brook Trout Populations 


 


V. Assessment of Threats to Brook Trout 


 


VI. Vision 


 


VII. Principal Goals 


 


VIII. Key Priorities 


 


IX. Conservation Strategies 


A. Introduction 


B. Habitat 


i. Range-wide Habitat Objectives and Strategies 


ii. Regional Habitat Objectives and Strategies 


iii. State-Level Habitat Objectives and Strategies 


C. Monitoring 


D. Data Management 


E. Research 


F. Standards for Determining Success 


i. Defining Joint Venture Success 


ii. Integrating Adaptive Management 


G.  Evaluation 


 


X. Strategic Planning for Partnerships 


A. Role of Partnerships 


B. Building Partnerships: A Strategic Approach 


C. Measuring Partnership Success: Targets, Timelines, and Metrics 


 


XI. Strategic Planning for Outreach and Educational Programs 


A. Role of Outreach and Education 


B. Outreach and Education Strategies 


C. Allocating Responsibilities 


D.  Measuring Outreach and Education Success: Targets, Timelines, and Metrics 


 


 


 


 







 3 


XII. Strategic Plan for Program Support 


A. Types of Support Needed: Political, Public, and Funding 


B. Program Support Goals and Strategies 


C. Determining Funding Requirements 


i. Matrix of Estimated costs by State, Region, and Range 


ii. Funding Dispersal Matrix 


iii. Funding Timetable 


D. Tracking and Reporting of Fund Allocations 


 


XIII. Regional Coordination 


 


XIV. Expected Results and Benefits 


 


XV. Appendix I.  State-Level Brook Trout Conservation Action Plans 


A. Northern Region 


i. Massachusetts 


ii. Maine 


iii. New Hampshire 


iv. New York 


v. Pennsylvania 


vi. Vermont 


B. Southern Region 


i. Georgia 


ii. Maryland 


iii. North Carolina 


iv. South Carolina 


v. Tennessee 


vi. Virginia 


vii. West Virginia 


 


XVI. References 


 


 







 4 


Executive Summary 
 


Brook trout Salvelinus fontinalis are a recreationally and culturally important species, regional 


icon, and indicator of high water quality; however, populations are declining across their historic 


eastern United States range (Maine to Georgia).  The Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture 


(EBTJV) is a partnership of state and federal agencies, nongovernmental organizations, and 


academic institutions.  This collaborative approach to brook trout management is justified 


because (1) brook trout are declining across their entire eastern range; (2) causes for these 


declines are similar; (3) an integrated approach would be cost effective; and, (4) watersheds of 


concern span state borders and state and federal jurisdictions.  


In 2005, the EBTJV completed a range-wide assessment of brook trout populations throughout 


their native eastern United States range (Hudy et al. 2005).  The study area encompassed 


approximately 25% of the native range of brook trout in North America and 70% of its native 


United States range.  The assessment revealed wild brook trout populations in the eastern United 


States are impaired.  Intact stream populations of brook trout, where wild brook trout occupy 


>90% of historical habitat, exist in only 5% of the watersheds assessed.  Populations of stream-


dwelling brook trout are greatly reduced or have been extirpated from nearly half of the 


watersheds in their native range.  The vast majority of historically occupied large rivers no 


longer support self-reproducing populations of brook trout.  Watersheds with intact populations 


of lake-dwelling brook trout are almost exclusively located in Maine, although some lakes and 


ponds in New York, New Hampshire, and Vermont still contain self-sustaining brook trout 


populations.   


The EBTJV partners agreed that a broad-scale, range-wide conservation strategy is necessary 


to stop brook trout declines, improve technology transfer, and effectively prioritize funds and 


projects to restore this important species.  This Conservation Strategy is a goal-oriented, science-


based, action plan that explicitly states EBTJV principal goals, presents guidance for decision-


making, and provides methods for evaluating success.  Findings from the range-wide status and 


threats assessment serve as the foundation for the development of the vision, goals, objectives, 


strategies, procedures, and guidelines contained within the EBTJV Conservation Strategy.  The 


EBTJV believes this structure will result in a focused, technically credible, publicly accountable 


program linking EBTJV projects to specific objectives so funding will be effectively utilized.  


The vision of the EBTJV is to ensure “healthy, fishable brook trout populations throughout 


their historic eastern United States range.”  The principal goals of the EBTJV are: (1) conserve, 


enhance and restore brook trout populations that have been impacted by habitat modification, or 


other threats and disturbances; (2) encourage partnerships among management agencies and 


stakeholders to seek solutions to issues such as regional environmental and ecological threats; (3) 


develop and implement outreach and educational programs to ensure public awareness of the 


challenges that face brook trout populations; and (4) develop support for implementation of 


programs that perpetuate and restore brook trout throughout their historic range. 


 This report summarizes the range-wide, regional, and state-level goals, objectives, and 


strategies designed to achieve the overall principle goals of the EBTJV.  This report also focuses 


on strategic planning to develop partnerships and secure funding to ensure the continuation of the 


EBTJV.  In addition, individual state conservation strategies are presented, which demonstrate 


the commitment of all EBTJV partners and focus range-wide goals and objectives down to the 


state and local levels.  Together, the components of this working document represent the 


framework necessary to begin the conservation of brook trout in the eastern United States. 








National Fish Habitat Board 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 6 
 


 


Rebuild wisely, not cheaply:   Doing it right the first time through fish passage 


Cross-agency and NGO initiative (Forest Service, Fish and Wildlife Service, DOT, FEMA, NRCS, State agencies, Trout 


Unlimited, American Rivers, TNC, and others) 


Problem: 


Outdated or improperly-sized road stream crossings that cannot withstand flooding events are causing 


increased hazards to human health and safety and significant, sometimes repeated, replacement costs.  


This problem is magnified by stream channelization and the clearing of sediment, boulders, and large 


wood in streams which increases the magnitude of subsequent flooding events, thereby increasing the 


magnitude of human safety hazards and infrastructure damage to humans and their investments.  In 


addition to these impacts threats to public safety and health, the devastation to water quality and 


aquatic life is immeasurable.  Unfortunately in a state of emergency following a flood event and where 


replacement standards are not effective, and in small rural areas in these tough economic times, road 


crossing replacements after a flooding event is often not much better than what existed before the 


event and sometimes is an exact duplication of the situation that existed prior to a flood, maintaining or 


even increasing the likelihood of it happening again.  Agencies and local personnel sometimes work at 


odds with each other due to differing missions (perceived or real) and lack of coordinated responses.  


The flooding brought on by Hurricane Irene in August 2011 provides an excellent  improve upon federal 


post-flood responses while protecting financial investments, increasing safety and protecting streams, 


rivers, roads, homes and businesses from significant damage, all while restoring fish habitat. 


Goal: 


Bring national and State attention to a problem with untapped solutions that lead to future avoidable 


devastation, including decreased loss of property damage, caused by flooding events where 


infrastructure is compromised.  These proactive solutions reduce human safety risks, reduce property 


damage, contribute to aquatic natural resource protection, and save tax payer money. 


Objectives: 


1.  Affect choice of standards that are used for restoration, recovery, and replacement of road 


infrastructure 


2. Affect post flooding, in-stream activities through education, demonstration, and proactive 


floodplain restoration  


3. Development and education of implementable alternatives to recovery activities on national, 


regional, and local levels 


4. Bring together federal, state, local, and NGO’s to compile and utilize  resources and expertise to 







National Fish Habitat Board 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 6 
 


 


5. Develop mechanisms (monetary and technical) that States and municipalities can come to for 


assistance. 


 


Potential actions: 


1. Form a national contingent of partners (Federal, NGO’s, States) that can promote collaborative 


action of working together to “build disaster resistant communities” by working through: 


a. Evaluation of existing policies  


b. Building a collaboration of expertise among the groups 


c. Education 


d. Demonstration 


e. Mobilization – “strike teams” (regional and local) that can assist infollowing an 


emergency flooding event. 


f. Identification or development of funding resources for States and municipalities, 


particularly small towns, to utilize as match to rebuild or be proactive in infrastructure 


restoration projects 


2. Work with recovery agencies and towns to promote “building disaster resistant communities” 


3. Congressional and/or partner summit which could be a step to achieve 1 a, b, and c. 


a. Audience:  Congressional staff,  State and Federal agencies, and NGO’s 


b. Messages:  discuss above problem identified above with an open discussion on long 


term solutions.  This includes economic values of doing it right the first time, and the 


advantages of restoring for the aquatic resources greatly benefits the public safety and 


saves tax payer dollars. 


c. Goal:  begin the collaboration process and discussion of more effective policies in the 


spring of 2012. 







National Fish Habitat Board 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 6 
 


 


Key Contacts: 


 Susan E. Wells, USFWS, 703-358-2523, susan_wells@fws.gov 


 Keith Curley, Trout Unlimited, 703-284-9428, kcurley@tu.org 


 Nat Gillespie, Forest Service, 202-205-7827, ngillespie@fs.fed.us 
  
 Amy Unthank, Forest Service, 202-205-0951, anthank@fs.fed.us 
 
 
 
 


 Example of what happened to road stream crossings in the NE 
 


 Example of what happened to road stream crossings in the NE 
 



mailto:susan_wells@fws.gov

mailto:kcurley@tu.org

mailto:ngillespie@fs.fed.us

mailto:anthank@fs.fed.us





National Fish Habitat Board 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 6 
 


 


This is an example of an emergency fix right after the Tropical Storm Irene. 
 


Many streams were straightened in an attempt to pass water faster as 
well as for gravel mining purposes. 








  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


1 


 


 


Title:   Fish Habitat Partnership Performance Evaluation Progress Report 


 


Desired outcome:  An informational update to the Board on the initial outcomes from the 


FHP Performance Evaluation “test drive.” 


 


Background:  The Board conditionally approved a set of Fish Habitat Partnership 


performance measures at its July 27, 2011 meeting and requested a “test drive” of the 


evaluation process.  The primary purposes of the test drive are to: 


 


A. Assess the relevance of the measures and the performance level rating criteria 


associated with each measure; and, 


 


B. Determine how well the evaluation process works. 


 


The findings from the test drive are to be reported back to the Board with recommendations 


to finalize the process for evaluating Fish Habitat Partnership performance.   


 


Although the test drive process has not been fully completed, this briefing is intended to keep 


the Board informed on the progress that has been made to date.  Final recommendations will 


be presented to the Board for considerations and actions at the July 2012 meeting. 


 


Reference material: See below for “Progress Report:  Performance Evaluation of Fish 


Habitat Partnerships” 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


2 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


PROGRESS REPORT 


 


PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF 


FISH HABITAT PARTNERSHIPS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


National Fish Habitat Board 


Kelly Hepler, Chair 


 


Prepared by: Performance Review Team 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


3 


 


Background 


 


The National Fish Habitat Partnership (National Partnership or NFHP) is an unprecedented 


effort to build and support partnerships that are strategically focused on fish habitat 


conservation. The National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan) guides this initiative and 


establishes processes for bringing partners together, challenging them to collaboratively 


advance strategic priorities, as well as measure and report on the outcomes of their 


conservation actions. A high level of commitment to these principles distinguishes the 


National Partnership from other fish habitat conservation programs. 


 


To uphold the high standards set by the Action Plan, the National Fish Habitat Board (Board) 


tasked its Criteria Development Committee (Committee) with developing a set of measures 


that would evaluate Fish Habitat Partnership performance levels for core operational 


functions (i.e. coordination, scientific assessment, strategic planning, data management, 


project administration, communications, and outreach).   The Committee presented ten 


performance measures for the Board’s considerations and action during its meeting on July 


27, 2011. 


 


Direction from the National Fish Habitat Board 


 


The Board conditionally approved the set of Fish Habitat Partnership performance measures, 


as presented (Appendix A), and requested a “test drive” of the evaluation process.  The 


primary purposes of the test drive were to: 


 


1. Assess the relevance of the measures and the performance level rating criteria associated 


with each measure; and, 


 


2. Determine how well the evaluation process works. 


 


The findings from the test drive are to be reported back to the Board with recommendations 


to finalize the process for evaluating Fish Habitat Partnership performance. 


 


Performance Review Team 


 


The Board Chair established a Review Team charged with implementing and assessing the 


performance evaluation of Fish Habitat Partnerships.  The Review Team members were: 


Steve Perry (Board member), Krystyna Wolniakowski (Board member), Tom Busiahn 


(Board staff), Andrea Ostroff (Board staff), and Karen Abrams (Board staff). 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


4 


 


Performance Evaluation Process 


 


Performance evaluation forms, along with instructions for completing the forms, were sent to 


the coordinator or Steering Committee Chair of each Fish Habitat Partnership on September 


14, 2011.  Five regional conference calls were held with representatives of each Fish Habitat 


Partnership to answer questions about the performance evaluation process and completing 


the forms.  Completed performance evaluation forms were received from all seventeen 


recognized Fish Habitat Partnerships by January 10, 2012; covering their activities during the 


2011 calendar year (January 1-December 31).  The Performance Review Team met by 


conference call on January 9, 2012 to discuss the process it would follow to complete its 


assessment of each Fish Habitat Partnership’s responses to the 10 performance measures.  


The first part of the process entailed having each team member review and rate the 


performance level independently,  using a rating scale of 1 to 4, and then the scores were 


averaged (n=5 for each Fish Habitat Partnership response) to determine the final rating.  The 


lowest possible composite score for a Fish Habitat Partnership was 10, and the highest 


possible score was 40.  The Performance Review Team collectively discussed each Fish 


Habitat Partnership’s performance evaluation outcome by teleconference on March 7, 2012 


and then the performance evaluation outcomes were sent to the respective Fish Habitat 


Partnerships for their review and considerations.  The Performance Review Team is currently 


receiving Fish Habitat Partnership feedback on all aspects of the performance evaluation 


process. 


 


Performance Evaluation Outcomes 


 


Overview 


 


Fish Habitat Partnerships cooperated very well with the Performance Review Team.  


Responses by Fish Habitat Partnerships on the Evaluation Form were filed in a timely 


manner, but varied widely in their depth and completeness.  Members of the Performance 


Review Team used somewhat different approaches in evaluating responses; some considered 


only the content of the responses, and others supplemented the responses with their personal 


knowledge of Fish Habitat Partnerships.  The final report will include recommendations to 


achieve more uniform responses from Fish Habitat Partnerships and more uniform 


evaluations by reviewers. 


 


The most prominent general observation is that older Fish Habitat Partnerships achieved 


higher scores.  This may be due to a greater maturity among older Fish Habitat Partnerships 


in their strategic planning, resource assessment, and outreach.  However, the older Fish 


Habitat Partnerships also receive a higher level of funding from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


5 


 


Service, a factor that may contribute to their higher scores.  At this point in time, the younger 


Fish Habitat Partnerships have a very short track record, so drawing definitive conclusions 


from this observation is probably not fully justified. 


 


Performance Measures 


 


When the scores for each performance measure are averaged among all Fish Habitat 


Partnerships, five measures (#1, #3, #4, #5, and #6) received ratings that were ≥ 2.8 points 


(2.8 represents 70% of the available points) while five measures (#2, #7, #8, #9, and #10) fell 


below this point total (Figure 1).  Performance measures #1 (addressing strategic priorities) 


and #3 (focusing on the causes of fish habitat decline) had the highest average scores (3.7 


and 3.6, respectively), whereas performance measures #9 (coordination with NFHP Science 


and Data Committee), #7 (use of resource condition assessments), and #10 (measuring 


progress) had the lowest average scores (1.5, 2.0, and 2.1, respectively).  The average scores 


for performance measures #2 (use of project effectiveness measures), #4 (leveraging NFHP 


funds), #5 (prioritizing projects for funding), #6 (level of engagement with other FHPs), and 


#8 (quality and quantity of outreach) ranged from 2.4 to 3.2. 


 


For three of the performance measures (#2, #7, and #8) that had consolidated average scores 


that were less than 2.8, the older Fish Habitat Partnerships (recognized 3.6 years or more) 


generally received higher ratings than the younger partnerships (recognized for 2.7 years or 


less).  With performance measure #2 (use of project effectiveness measures), five of six 


(83%) older Fish Habitat Partnerships received a score ≥ 3.0, while only three of eleven 


(27%) younger partnerships received a similar score (Figure 2). 


 


For performance measure #7 (use of resource condition assessments), three of the six (50%) 


oldest Fish Habitat Partnerships received scores that were ≥ 3.0, whereas just one of the 


eleven (9%) younger partnerships scored a 3.0 or higher (Figure 3).  Likewise, with 


performance measure #8 (quality and quantity of outreach), three of six (50%) of the older 


Fish Habitat Partnerships received scores of ≥ 3.0 for this measure; only four of eleven (36%) 


of the younger partnerships achieved scores this high (Figure 4).  Age of the Fish Habitat 


Partnership did not play a discernable role for the scores received for performance measures 


#9 (coordination with NFHP Science and Data Committee) and #10 (measuring progress), as 


none of the partnerships received a score that was 3.0 or more for former measure (Figure 5) 


and only one partnership scored as high as 3.0 for the latter measure (Figure 6). 


 


 


 


 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


6 


 


Fish Habitat Partnerships 


 


Seven of the seventeen (41%) Fish Habitat Partnerships received ≥ 70% of the total number 


of performance rating points available (28 points or higher); two of these seven had total 


scores that exceeded 80% of the available points (Figure 7).  Of the ten Fish Habitat 


Partnerships that received less than 70% of the available points, only one fell below the 50% 


point total (20 points).  It was evident that the number of years a Fish Habitat Partnership has 


been recognized was linked to their level of performance, though there were exceptions.  The 


average age (years recognized) for the Fish Habitat Partnerships who received a total score of 


28 points, or more, is 3.7 years (range = 2.7 to 4.2 years) and for those partnerships whose 


scores were < 28, the age averaged 2.3 years (range = 1.8 to 3.6 years). 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


7 


 


 


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


A
v
e
ra


g
e
 S


c
o


re
 (


A
ll


 F
H


P
s
 C


o
m


b
in


e
d


)


#1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6 #7 #8 #9 #10


Performance Measure


 


Figure 1.  Average scores for the ten measures used to evaluate Fish Habitat Partnership 


performance levels. 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


8 


 


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


P
er


fo
rm


an
ce


 S
co


re


4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 3.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.8


Years Recognized as FHP


 
Figure 2.  Fish Habitat Partnership scores for their use of project effectiveness measures 


(performance measure #2).  Fish Habitat Partnerships are ranked from the oldest 


on the left to the youngest on the right. 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


9 


 


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


P
er


fo
rm


an
ce


 S
co


re
s


4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 3.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.8


Years Recognized as FHP


 
Figure 3.  Fish Habitat Partnership scores for their use of resource condition assessments 


(performance measure #7).  Fish Habitat Partnerships are ranked from the oldest 


on the left to the youngest on the right. 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


10 


 


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


P
er


fo
rm


an
ce


 S
co


re
s


4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 3.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.8


Years Recognized as FHP


 
Figure 4.  Fish Habitat Partnership scores for their quality and quantity of outreach 


(performance measure #8).  Fish Habitat Partnerships are ranked from the oldest 


on the left to the youngest on the right. 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


11 


 


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


P
er


fo
m


an
ce


 S
co


re
s


4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 3.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.8


Years Recognized as FHP


 
Figure 5.  Fish Habitat Partnership scores for their coordination with NFHP Science and Data 


Committee (performance measure #9).  Fish Habitat Partnerships are ranked from 


the oldest on the left to the youngest on the right. 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


12 


 


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


P
er


fo
rm


an
ce


 S
co


re
s


4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 3.8 3.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.8


Years Recognized as FHP


 
 


Figure 6.  Fish Habitat Partnership scores for measuring their progress (performance measure 


#10).  Fish Habitat Partnerships are ranked from the oldest on the left to the 


youngest on the right. 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


13 


 


y = 2.8623x + 18.697


R
2
 = 0.3764


10


15


20


25


30


35


40


0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5


Years Recognized as FHP


P
e
r
fo


r
m


a
n


c
e
 S


c
o


r
e
s


 
 


 Figure 7.  Fish Habitat Partnership performance scores (all measures combined). 







  National Fish Habitat Board April, 2012 Meeting 
Tab7 


 


14 


 


Appendix A 


 


Fish Habitat Partnership Performance Measures (adopted by the Board on July 27, 2011) 


 


1. Addressing FHP strategic priorities (i.e. geographic focus areas, habitat types, key stressors 


or impairments) and/or NFHAP Final Interim Strategies & Targets with fish habitat 


conservation projects. 


 


2. Use of effectiveness measures (i.e. indicators that measure short and long term progress 


toward achieving desired conservation outcomes) for fish habitat conservation projects. 


 


3. Focus on conservation projects that protect vulnerable fish habitats or address causes and 


processes behind fish habitat decline. 


 


4. Leveraging NFHAP funds in fish habitat conservation projects recommended for funding. 


 


5. Prioritizing fish habitat conservation projects for NFHAP funding. 


 


6. Level of coordination (i.e. consulting, cooperating, and collaborating) with neighboring or 


overlapping FHPs and other regional habitat conservation planning entities. 


 


7. Use of science-based resource condition assessments and/or analysis to identify priority 


conservation actions. 


 


8. The quality and quantity of outreach aimed at raising awareness and understanding of the 


FHP’s strategic priorities, its conservation activities, and changes in habitat conditions. 


 


9. Coordination of FHP aquatic resources data and regional assessment information with the 


NFHAP Science and Data Committee for use with the national information system. 


 


10. Measuring progress and achieving FHP goals & objectives and/or NFHAP Final Interim 


Strategies & Targets. 


 








National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
  April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 8 
 


Proposed NCN:  Fisheries and Water Resources Policy Committee 
Strengthening the National Fish Habitat Partnership 


 
 
Statement of Need 
The National Fish Habitat Partnership (NFHP) seeks to arrest and reverse declines to the 
quality and quantity of our nation’s fish habitat in freshwater, estuarine, and marine waters.  The 
National Partnership includes 18 regional Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHPs) that develop and 
implement landscape scale approaches to protect, restore, and enhance priority fish habitats 
(natural and manmade) across the nation.  All 50 states are engaged in one or more of the 
FHPs.  The Partnership is guided by the National Fish Habitat Action Plan and coordinated by 
the National Fish Habitat Board (Board) which includes AFWA and regional association 
representatives.   
 
FHPs implement the habitat-based conservation strategies and actions established by the 
Board and themselves and seek to complement other local, regional, and national priorities, 
particularly those contained in many State Wildlife Action Plans. 
 
The Multi-state Conservation Grant Program helps leverage other federal, state, and private 
resources to implement the priorities of the Board and the FHPs.  Grant resources aid state, 
federal, tribal, private, academic, and other local partners that coordinate with or are members 
of FHPs to 


 compile scientific information on fish habitats, 


 establish strategic goals and objectives for fish species and habitats, and  


 develop methods for and implement habitat conservation activities across jurisdictional 
boundaries and species ranges. 


 
 
Desired Proposals 
Grant recipients would compete for Multi-state Conservation Grants to:  


1) coordinate and compile scientific assessment information on fish habitats consistent with 
the Board’s Science and Data Framework, including addressing gaps identified by FHPs 
in the 2010 National Fish Habitat Assessment, 


2) implement data standards and mechanisms established by the Board,  
3) develop measurable outcomes from conservation action for fish species and habitats 


and compile those outcomes for reporting to the Board and stakeholders, 
4) develop or improve methods to identify priority places, issues, and projects to focus 


conservation action 
5) monitor the performance and needs of FHPs nationwide in a manner that enables direct 


and consistent comparisons between FHPs.   
 


Projects that create methods or systems that could by used by multiple FHPs, and/or those that 
could be adopted by the Board’s Science and Data Committee for broad implementation, are 
preferred.  Some examples of desired proposals would be those that include collaboration 
between Partnerships, and with Joint Ventures and/or Landscape Conservation Cooperatives. 
 
 
 
 
 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
  April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 8 
Desired Outcomes 
Desired outcomes of successful proposals would include:  


1) production of scientific information that fills gaps identified through the national fish 
habitat assessment reported in Through a Fish’s Eye:  Status of Fish Habitats in the 
United States 2010,  


2) coordinated implementation of NFHP Conservation Strategies and Targets adopted by 
the Board or FHPs for rivers, lakes, reservoirs, and other aquatic habitats,  


3) development of new analytical approaches to examine landscape conservation 
information to improve the Board’s and FHP’s understanding of fish habitat quality or 
condition, 


4) coordinated implementation of conservation actions by FHPs with other aquatic habitat 
strategies and actions identified in State Wildlife Action Plans and other complementary 
plans, 


5) engagement of additional organizations and individuals with interest in the conservation 
of target aquatic habitats with FHPs and the Board,  


6) support for and development of FHP capacity to achieve goals and objectives for 2015 
that will be outlined in the revised Action Plan that is expected to be completed in early 
2012. 


 








National Fish Habitat Board meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 9 


 


 1 


Report on FY 2012 Funding - U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 


National Fish Habitat Action Plan 
 


Background 


 


The Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) first received funds for the National Fish Habitat 


Action Plan in FY 2006, with Congressional direction “to implement on-the-ground, cost-


shared habitat restoration projects, identified in the Fisheries Operational Needs System and 


in direct support of fish habitat partnerships … and … to support continued development of 


the National Fish Habitat Plan” (House Report 109-080).  Each year, the Service has 


reported on the allocation of NFHAP funds at meetings of the National Fish Habitat Board. 


 


The Service’s NFHAP funding for 2006-2013 is shown in the table below.  The 2012 


appropriation was reduced by an across-the-board Congressional rescission of 0.16%.  The 


2012 funding includes two earmarks:  $240,793 for the Healthy Lands Initiative in the Green 


River Basin, Wyoming and $1,996,800 for projects that address adaptation to climate change. 


 
Fiscal Year President’s Request 


($ millions) 
Appropriated 
($ millions) 


2006 -- 0.985 


2007 2.985 2.985 


2008 5.235 5.153 


2009 5.153 5.153 


2010 7.153 7.153 


2011 7.153 7.153 


2012 7.153 7.142 


2013 7.142 -- 


 


To promote consistency within the Service and transparency for our partners, the use of 


Service funds for NFHAP is guided by written policy, accessible online at 


http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.html. 


 


It is important to note that these funds are the Service Fisheries Program’s contribution 


toward implementing the Action Plan.  The Service encourages its Fisheries Program field 


stations to take an active role in developing and implementing projects that are highly ranked 


by Fish Habitat Partnerships.  While many of the funds are passed through to partners to 


implement FHP-ranked projects, the funds also support Service staffs in each Region, who 


assist FHPs, some as FHP coordinators, in strategic planning, assessment, outreach, and 


project implementation.  These Fisheries Program operational funds should not be confused 


with a grant program that may be established by proposed NFHAP legislation.   


 


 


Allocation of FY 2012 funds 


 


In FY 2012, the Service received an appropriation of $7,141,555 to implement NFHAP.  The 


amount available for allocation was reduced by 2.4% ($172,932) for assessments to support 


national Service and Departmental priorities.  At this writing, the allocation shown below is 


awaiting final approval by the Director.   



http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.html





National Fish Habitat Board meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 9 


 


 2 


 
National 


 Board priorities $300,000 Supports Board communications and science priorities 
through contracts with AFWA and Michigan State University.  


 Board staff $180,905 Full-time staff support for Board activities, including travel.   


Coordination & 
Leadership 


$230,149 Reservoir FHP coordination, additional Washington Office staff 
support, space costs, and other operational costs. 


Subtotal National $711,054  


Regional 


FHP development 
& operations 


$978,104 Supports development and operational costs of Fish Habitat 
Partnerships, including FHP coordination, meeting and travel 
expenses, strategic planning, and development of scientific 
capabilities.   


Coordination & 
Leadership 


$1,721,472 Includes staff support, helping FHPs rank and select projects, 
reporting accomplishments of projects, providing biological 
expertise and technical assistance to FHPs, and outreach in 
support of the Action Plan. 


Healthy Lands 
Initiative 


$240,793 Projects that address priorities of Fish Habitat Partnerships in 
the Green River Basin, Wyoming (potentially WNTI and 
DFHP). 


Subtotal Regional $2,940,369  


Local projects 


 $556,800 Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership 


 $556,800 Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture 


 $556,800 Western Native Trout Initiative 


 $278,400 Driftless Area Restoration Effort 


 $278,400 Mat-Su Basin Salmon Conservation Partnership 


 $100,000 Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Desert Fish Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Midwest Glacial Lakes Partnership 


 $90,000 Hawaii Fish Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Ohio River Basin Fish Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Reservoir Fisheries Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Great Lakes Basin Fish Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Great Plains Fish Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 Kenai Peninsula Fish Habitat Partnership 


 $90,000 California Fish Passage Forum 


 $90,000 Fishers and Farmers Partnership 


 $0 Pacific Marine & Estuarine Partnership (recognized Jan 2012) 


Subtotal local projects $3,317,200  


GRAND TOTAL $6,968,623  


 


 


For more information: 


Bryan Arroyo, Assistant Director – Fisheries and Habitat Conservation, 202-208-6394 


Tom Busiahn, FWS NFHP Coordinator, 703-358-2056 

































Landscape Conservation Cooperatives
Frequently Asked Questions


Conservation in Action  February 2012


1) Why are Landscape Conservation 
Cooperatives being established?
Protecting North America’s natural 
and cultural resources and landscapes 
is essential to sustaining our quality 
of life and our economy. Native fish 
and wildlife species depend on healthy 
rivers, streams, wetlands, forests, 
grasslands and coastal areas to thrive. 
Managing these natural and cultural 
resources and landscapes, however, 
has become increasingly complex. 
Land use changes and impacts 
such as drought, wildfire, habitat 
fragmentation, contaminants, pollution, 
invasive species, disease and a rapidly 
changing climate can threaten human 
populations as well as native species 
and their habitats.


Landscape Conservation Cooperatives 
(LCCs) are public-private partnerships 
composed of states, tribes, federal 
agencies, non-governmental 
organizations, universities and others. 
LCCs recognize these challenges 
transcend political and jurisdictional 
boundaries and require a more 
networked approach to conservation—
holistic, collaborative, adaptive and 
grounded in science—to ensure the 
sustainability of North America’s land, 
water, wildlife and cultural resources.


The LCC network is composed of 22 
individual LCCs, several of which have 
relationships with conservation entities 
in Canada or Mexico. 


2) How did LCCs come about?
In signing Secretarial Order No. 3289 
on Sept. 14, 2009, Interior Secretary 
Ken Salazar directed Department 
of the Interior bureaus to stimulate 
the development of the LCC network 
as a response to landscape-scale 
stressors, including climate change. 
The cooperatives are intended to work 
interactively with DOI Climate Science 
Centers to help coordinate regional 
adaptation efforts.


While LCCs are integral to climate 
change adaptation efforts, they are 
not climate-centric. They will provide 
science support for conservation 
activities that address a variety of 
broad-scale land use pressures and 
landscape-scale stressors—including 
but not limited to climate change— that 
affect wildlife, water, land and cultural 
resources.


3) What is the role of an LCC?
The role of an individual LCC 
is: to leverage funding, staff and 
resources; to develop common goals; 
to develop tools and strategies to 
inform landscape-scale planning and 
management decisions; to link science 
to management; and to facilitate 
information exchange among partners. 


The role of the national LCC network 
is: to provide a forum for national and 
international conservation planning; to 
integrate the efforts of the 22 LCCs; 


and to facilitate efforts across and 
among individual LCCs. 


The role of an LCC partner is: to 
define and share individual landscape-
scale priorities; to help shape a 
common landscape-scale conservation 
framework for science and conservation 
actions; and to provide feedback to 
the LCC on the effectiveness of LCC 
products and approaches. 


4) How do LCCs meet unfilled 
conservation needs?
North America’s landscapes, and 
the fish, wildlife, plants and cultural 
heritage they support, are increasingly 
impacted by threats that affect more 
than isolated places or single species. 
They tend to threaten multiple 
resources and entire landscapes. Often, 
these threats are beyond the scope and 
reach of any one partner, partnership, 
or program. LCCs provide a forum for 
partners and partnerships to integrate 
efforts. 


5) How does the LCC network add value 
to existing conservation efforts?
LCCs combine the collective science 
capacity, infrastructure, creativity, 
perspectives and, sometimes, financial 
resources of existing partnerships and 
programs to address decision support 
needs on a comprehensive scale. They 
are a forum for developing a common 
understanding of landscape change and 
a common vision for adaptation.


6) How are LCCs unique?
LCCs look at whole landscapes 
and involve a diverse community of 
conservation partners working on 
a given landscape. Because many 
conservation challenges are so complex 
and interconnected with numerous 
issues, conservation agencies and 
organizations increasingly must 
work together across jurisdictional 
lines to inform management of 
North America’s natural and cultural 
resources.  LCCs are well-positioned to 
enable conservation organizations to do 
that on a landscape scale. 


Catskill Mountains, New York. USFWS







7) How do LCCs improve data sharing?
LCCs work with partners to determine 
what information is needed at what 
scale and in what format to help them 
make conservation decisions. LCCs 
are then building shared information 
management systems that link to all 
relevant data that decision-makers 
need.


8) How do LCCs help improve 
communication and coordination across 
and within agencies?
LCCs bring together conservation 
programs and partners working in the 
same geographic areas to agree on a 
shared vision for the sustainability of 
natural and cultural resources.  LCCs 
provide a mechanism for diverse 
partners to identify where they 
can take action to address shared 
challenges while understanding how 
those actions contribute to their own 
organizations’ objectives. 


9) How do LCCs help coordinate 
science?
LCCs work with partners to compile 
information and develop decision 
support tools useful to land managers 
in addressing pressing science and 
management needs. They incorporate 
science needs and project information 
in conservation frameworks that enable 
LCC partners to understand how 
projects fit together and to prioritize 
next steps.


10) How do LCCs and DOI Climate 
Science Centers work together?
The Department of the Interior is 
establishing eight Climate Science 
Centers.  Their scope includes the full 
range of natural and cultural resources, 
and their focus is on information 
needed to manage these resources 
in the face of climate change.  LCCs 
are the CSCs’ primary clients.  LCCs 
will use this information provided 
by the CSCs to support existing or 
develop new landscape-scale resource 
management plans that will inform 


future activities and assist partners in 
focusing their management decisions. 


11) Why is it important for LCCs to 
address cultural and tribal resource 
issues?
Through their conservation planning 
efforts, cultural and tribal resource 
managers identify threats to resources 
protected through federal, state, or 
local statutory law. LCCs provide 
science and resource management 
decision-support tools to assess the 
condition and needs of these trust 
resources as well as multiple resources 
across a landscape. 


12) How do LCCs work with and build 
off of conservation partnerships such 
as joint ventures and fish habitat 
partnerships?
LCCs synthesize and build on the 
current science and conservation work 
of existing partnerships, such as fish 
habitat partnerships, migratory bird 
joint ventures and flyway councils, as 
well as water resources, land, coastal, 


marine and cultural 
partnerships. 
They combine 
the expertise 
of existing 
conservation 
partnerships 
and programs 
to increase and 
integrate collective 
science capacity to 
make planning for 
multiple resources 
across large 
landscapes possible.


13) Will LCCs divert attention and 
resources from other efforts, such as 
state wildlife grants or joint ventures?
No. LCCs recognize joint ventures 
and the National Fish Habitat Action 
Plan (NFHAP) structure as important, 
independent efforts. The excellence of 
these programs is vital to the overall 
success of American conservation 
efforts. Maintaining or increasing 
funding to the states through the State 
and Tribal Wildlife Grants Program 
is fundamental to that collective 
effort. Without the expertise and 
funding of these three programs, it 
would be difficult for LCCs to develop 
sustainable landscapes. LCCs are 
intended to support these programs 
by identifying and funding the mutual 
science needs of these organizations 
while integrating that science and 
partner goals to develop a vision for 
conservation action.  By doing so, LCCs 
are intended to reduce redundancy of 
effort in the science development arena, 
thus saving resources for the effective 
implementation of conservation. 


14) How do LCCs coordinate across 
federal conservation efforts?
LCCs function as forums to align 
large-scale federal conservation 
effort by sponsoring and promoting 
dialogue on specific issues common 
to many conservation efforts (e.g., 
climate change, invasive species, land 
use and sage grouse) both within an 
LCC and across LCCs. A key focus is 
identifying potential redundancies and 
opportunities to leverage resources 
across conservation efforts. LCCs 
also serve and interpret data; identify 
regional monitoring needs; identify 


LCCs are forums for partnerships that allow a region’s private, state and federal 
conservation infrastructure to operate as a system rather than as independent 
entities. Photo by Brian Jonkers/USFWS


Mule deer and wind turbines in the Columbia Hills of 
Washington State. Photo by Mike Schroeder







regional science needs including 
research, modeling and syntheses 
of existing research; and evaluate/
facilitate decision-support tools. 


15) How do LCCs support the efforts 
of natural and cultural resource 
conservation or land management 
organizations? 
LCCs develop science-based 
conservation plans across a large 
geographic scale.  The plans are 
developed to support the vision 
of a broad diversity of partners 
and incorporate a mutual and 
comprehensive understanding of 
change on the landscape. The intent 
of this planning component of LCCs is 
to inform actions by partnerships and 
organizations that add up to something 
more than any one organization could 
accomplish on its own.


16) How do LCCs coordinate with and 
among regional conservation efforts 
that cross their boundaries as well as 
those of other jurisdictions (e.g. BLM 
Rapid Ecoregional Assessments), and 
how does this contribute to the total 
conservation effort?
LCCs can 1) facilitate conversations 
among tribal, state, federal and non-
governmental organizations about 
emerging regional challenges and 
opportunities as well as the potential 
effects of climate change on agriculture 
and municipal water supplies; 2) 
develop regional conservation, 
development and adaptation strategies 
to help inform and guide land and 
water use planning and other decision-
making processes;  and 3) serve as 
a clearinghouse to share personnel, 
funding and other resources to 
implement these regional strategies.  
Partners in many LCCs already 
participate on management teams 
facilitating the development of BLM’s 
Rapid Ecoregional Assessments 
(REAs). When the assessments are 
completed, LCC partners may help 
federal and state resource managers 
step-down REA information into 
land use planning and day-to-day 
management activities by:  1) serving 
regional information to resource 
managers and helping them understand 
implications and utility of the 
information and 2) conducting focused, 
finer grained assessments following the 
regional assessments.


17) Is there a lead agency for LCCs?
No.  LCCs are intended to be self-
directed partnerships.  The U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service and Department of 
the Interior played key roles in initially 


establishing LCCs and continue to 
contribute significant capacity for 
national coordination at all of the 
22 LCCs.  DOI agencies serve on 
individual LCC steering committees in 
equal standing with all other members. 
All major federal conservation agencies 
are engaged as LCC partners.


18) How do LCCs relate to one another?
The LCC network is composed of 
individual LCCs organized, governed 
and operated in a consistent manner 
that promotes landscape conservation 
nationally and internationally.


LCCs are self-directed partnerships. 
However, their governance, structure 
and operation are consistent so that 
they function as seamlessly as possible 
to support geographically defined 
landscapes.


It is largely the responsibility of 
the LCC staff in each region, in 
consultation with the steering 
committees (see next question), to 
ensure coordination of LCCs that share 
mutual interests and/or boundaries.


19) How are LCCs staffed or 
coordinated?
Each LCC has a steering committee, 
composed of executive-level 
and management-level partner 
representatives. States, Tribes, and 
NGOs with a natural/cultural resource 
management focus, all within a given 
LCC’s geographic area are invited to 
sit on its steering committee.


Steering committees, which are 
tailored to the needs of the individual 
LCCs, emphasize building on existing 
partnerships. Member organizations 
are expected to dedicate time and 
energy to developing a shared vision 
of conservation and coordinating their 
otherwise independent actions in the 
cooperative pursuit and implementation 
of the LCC.


A scientific and technical staff with 
an adaptive resource management 
focus forms the core of an LCC. The 
specifics of how each LCC is staffed are 
determined by its steering committee 
in consultation with federal agencies 
with dedicated funding. 


LCC core staff members typically 
include landscape and population 
modelers, geographers and geographic 
information system (GIS) specialists, 
terrestrial and aquatic ecologists, 
cultural resource specialists, 
quantitative fish and wildlife biologists, 


hydrologists, outreach specialists and 
other technical/decision support staff.  
Such staffing promotes collaboration 
and communication among LCCs 
regarding GIS, spatial data application, 
population modeling, statistics, 
conservation genetics, landscape 
ecology, etc.


20) How are LCCs funded?
The Department of the Interior 
is contributing significant funding 
through its agencies to support staff, 
science and operational capacity. It is 
expected that this initial investment will 
support the startup of most of the 22 
LCCs and begin to demonstrate their 
benefits for conservation. Several other 
federal, state and private organizations 
already have contributed significant 
resources toward LCC operations. 


21) How are LCC boundaries 
determined?
The LCCs’ geographic areas were 
developed by a team of U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service and U.S. Geological 
Survey scientists and experts by 
aggregating Bird Conservation 
Regions. BCRs are biologically 
based units that represent long-
standing partnerships that facilitate 
conservation planning and design at 
landscape scales. Some BCRs (e.g., 
Hawaii) were not aggregated and 
stand-alone as geographic areas. The 
geographic areas also incorporate 
standard units. For aquatic species 
considerations, the Freshwater 
Ecoregions of the World was the 
standard unit used. That is the same 
framework adopted by the National 
Fish Habitat Action Plan (NFHAP). 
To account for terrestrial species’ 
needs, Omernick’s Level II and other 
existing ecological units were used. 
The resulting geographic framework 
identified large regions that crossed 
state and federal administrative 
boundaries. In most geographic areas, 
the boundaries of key partnerships 
are left intact to preserve existing 
conservation and science capacities.  


Humboldt Bay National Wildlife 
Refuge in northern California is taking 
part in a Landscape Conservation 
Cooperative-facilitated study of 
sea level rise. Photo by Tupper Ansel Blake







For more information about Landscape 
Conservation Cooperatives Contact:
your local LCC coordinator
www.doi.gov/lcc/index.cfm
or
Doug Austen
National LCC Coordinator 
Tel. 703/358 1953 
Email: doug_austen@fws.gov


3


13


6


7


9


1


5


16


4


15


8


10


14


2


11


12


Papahanaumokuakea
Marine National Monument


In
te


rn
at


io
na


l D
at


e
L


in
e


In
te


rn
at


io
na


l D
at


e
L


in
e


Hawaii


Samoa


Guam


Micronesia


Wake Island


Marshall Islands


Jarvis IslandHowland Island


Johnston Atoll21


Landscape Conservation Cooperatives
1. Appalachian
2. California
3. Desert
4. Eastern Tallgrass Prairie and Big Rivers
5. Great Basin
6. Great Northern


7. Great Plains
8. Gulf Coast Prairie
9. Gulf Coastal Plains and Ozarks
10. North Atlantic
11. North Pacific
12. Peninsular Florida


13. Plains and Prairie Potholes
14. South Atlantic
15. Southern Rockies
16. Upper Midwest and Great Lakes
17. Aleutian and Bering Sea Islands
18. Arctic


19. Northwestern Interior Forest
20. Western Alaska
21. Pacific Islands
22. Caribbean
Unclassified


19


18


20
11


17


U.S. Department of the Interior
Landscape Conservation Cooperatives


Albers Equal Area Conic NAD83
Produced by FWS, IRTM, Denver, CO
Map Date: 12142011


22


Puerto Rico


0 100 200 300 400 500 Miles


February 2012








Landscape Conservation Cooperatives (LCC) are landscape-scale 
science-management partnerships, focused on developing 
science-based recommendations and decision-support tools 
to guide  on-the-ground conservation to sustain land, water, 
fish, wildlife, plant and cultural resources. LCCs consist of federal 
agencies, states, tribes, universities and organizations, and existing 
partnerships.


LCCs seek to integrate priority needs across species groups, 
identify the most effective conservation approaches to achieve 
common goals, connect efforts, identify gaps, and avoid 
duplication through improved conservation planning and design. 
This integrated approach is needed to address increasing land 
use pressures and widespread resource threats and uncertainties 
amplified by a rapidly changing climate. Core functions include:


n Developing  integrated conservation goals, priorities and
    science needs across taxonomic groups.
n Developing science-based tools and solutions to meet shared
    conservation goals.
n Increasing partners’ capacity for adaptive management  at
    landscape scales, including biological planning, conservation
    design, monitoring and evaluation.
n Facilitating optimal conservation decisions that consider and
    balance trade-offs among taxa.
n Testing scientific assumptions underlying models, and
    evaluating the effectiveness of conservation actions.


LCCs rely on existing partnerships like the ACJV to bring their 
science needs to the table, to provide technical expertise that is 
taxon-specific, and to coordinate delivery of conservation with 
partners and programs on the ground.  


The LCCs are integrated with Department of Interior regional 
Climate Science Centers. These centers will provide the basic 
science to support landscape-scale conservation planning 
including studies to understand climate impacts to ecosystems 
and their magnitude and potential interactions with other major 
stressors.


The twenty-one LCCs collectively form a national network of land, 
water, wildlife, and cultural resource managers, scientists, and 
interested public and private organizations—within the U.S. and 
across our international borders—that share a common need for 
scientific information and interest in conservation.


The Atlantic Coast Joint Venture and Landscape Conservation Cooperatives


Working Together for Effective Conservation


Defining Landscape Conservation Cooperatives


Defining the Atlantic Coast Joint Venture


When the concept of Landscape Conservation Cooperatives 
(LCCs) was first announced, Atlantic Coast Joint Venture 
(ACJV) staff and partners wondered what it would mean 
to our partnership.  Would “the way we do business” be 
affected?  We were asked how are LCCs different than 
bird habitat Joint Ventures (JVs)? We wondered, would 
partners be engaged with our JV and an LCC?  How might 
JV funding be affected?  We hope to help answer these 
questions below, to clarify how JVs and LCCs are distinct 
from--and complementary to--each other. Together we 
will continue to play a critical role in delivering the most 
effective habitat conservation now and in the future.


The ACJV is a partnership focused on the conservation of habitat 
for native birds in the Atlantic Flyway of the United States from 
Maine south to Puerto Rico. The partnership consists of 16 states 
and commonwealths plus key federal and regional conservation 
agencies and organizations. Originally focused on the conservation 
of waterfowl and wetlands, our mission has broadened to include 
the conservation of habitats for all native birds, consistent with the 
continental bird conservation plans.


The ACJV provides a forum for federal, state, regional and local 
partners to coordinate and improve the efficiency and effectiveness 
of bird habitat conservation planning, implementation, and 
evaluation of progress throughout the Atlantic Flyway. Core 
functions include:


n Conduct biological planning to prioritize the status and needs
    of bird species.
n Identify priority geographic areas and determine habitat
    conservation actions needed and evaluate progress through
    monitoring and research.  
n Collaborate to implement priority conservation projects and
    leverage matching funds in pursuit of these common goals.


Over five million acres of habitat have been protected, restored,   
and enhanced for migratory birds by ACJV partners in 20 years.


Atlantic Coast 
Joint Venture Boundary


Landscape Conservation 
Cooperatives that 
Overlap the ACJV *


North Atlantic


Peninsular Florida


South Atlantic


Upper Midwest and 
Great Lakes


Interim boundaries based 
on Steering Committee 
discussions


Coastal mist. Keith Carver







LCCs work to address major environmental and human-related factors that limit fish and wildlife populations at regional scales. New 
England Cottontail, Pamela Wells; Karner blue butterfly, USFWS; Brook trout, USFWS; Canada Lynx, USFWS


The business model of the bird habitat joint ventures is an iterative conservation approach. Our 
biological planning is resulting in goals and priorities for conservation action. The next step, 
called “conservation design,” is to develop habitat models at landscape and regional scales, which 
can be used to examine trade-offs among avian species and habitats, and optimize landscapes to 
meet population and habitat objectives for a host of different species. As our partners implement 
the recommended conservation activities on the ground, monitoring and research are used 
to evaluate their effectiveness, test the assumptions behind (and provide data to improve) the 
models, and measure progress towards objectives.


As agencies and organizations began to realize the increasing conservation challenges and 
complexity, the joint ventures were looked at as a model to build upon.  The need to integrate 
across taxonomic groups, incorporate a future-looking component, and a ground swell of 
support within the FWS (given its emphasis on Strategic Habitat Conservation) led to the 
Landscape Conservation Cooperative concept. 


The idea being that LCCs would leverage, 
integrate and add capacity to existing partnerships. The Department of Interior has 
championed this concept by providing the initial investment in LCCs to facilitate 
and increase the scientific capacity of the entire conservation community, to make 
holistic landscape conservation a reality across multiple taxa, in an efficient and 
comprehensive way.  The LCCs rely upon the expertise and build upon the existing 
collaborations that the bird and fish joint ventures represent, as well as many other 
conservation partnerships.  LCCs represent a new model of intentional engagement 
and cooperation across federal and state agencies, tribes, academic institutions, 
and NGOs, to ensure that the highest priorities are addressed in the most efficient 
manner possible, while avoiding any duplication of efforts.  The LCCs will ensure 
that the highest-priority applied-science needs are met, providing information to 
help partners and partnerships meet the largest challenges facing the conservation 
community, including climate change, habitat loss, land-use change (e.g., urban 
growth), and natural disturbances.


    
  S


et P
riorities Develop Strategies


Take Action


M
easure Success


Conservation 
Approach


The iterative conservation 
approach taken by the ACJV uses 
science-based planning and tools 
to set prioroties for conservation 


action and monitoring and 
research to evaluate effectiveness.


Ta
xo


no
m


ic
 P


rio
rit


ie
s


Fo
cu


s 
A


re
as


ACJV, Fish Habitat JVs, Endangered Species and 
Natural Heritage Programs, Partners in Amphibian & 


Reptile Conservation


H
ab


ita
t M


an
ag


em
en


t N
ee


ds


G
uidance on Landscape 


D
esign Im


plem
entation


Landscape Conservation Cooperatives
(Integrating Priorities + Increasing Capacity)


Conservation partnerships feed into the LCC 
which then increases science capacity and 
integrates aross taxa and habitats. LCCs then 
provide guidance for these partnerwhips to 
implement landscape design. 


The Atlantic Coast Joint Venture partnership works together to achieve common goals for bird conservation and implement on the 
ground conservation in the Atlantic Coast region that represents the four major bird conservation plans. Black-throated Blue Warbler, 
Bill Hubrick; Blac-necked Stilt, William Majoros; Roseate Spoonbill, William Majoros; Northern Pintail, William Majoros.


Making “Adaptive Management” a Reality


ACJV and LCCs Working Together for Effective Conservation


The ACJV is a long-standing partnership with a proven track record of conserving 
significant migratory bird habitat in the Atlantic Flyway. The ACJV is limited by lack 
of capacity for research and science to guide conservation across large landscapes.   


The LCCs are designed to use input from the ACJV, fish habitat JVs, State Wildlife Action Plans, and other conservation partnerships 
to increase and integrate their collective scientific capacity.  This collaboration will produce the science that will guide landscape 
conservation now and into the future, for a full complement of natural and cultural resources. The LCCs rely on the expertise, 
leadership, and coordination of conservation implementation that the ACJV provides for all bird species and their habitats; other 
partnerships will be expected to play a similar role for fisheries, reptiles & amphibians, threatened and endagered species, and cultural 
resources.  Working together, all these programs can coordinate effective, efficient, conservation for all wildlife, fish, and plant species 
at the landscape scale, across the region.








National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


1 


 


Survey of Fish Habitat Partnerships  
on relationships with Landscape Conservation Cooperatives 
 
Tom Busiahn, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
March 2012 
 
On February 14, 2012, a questionnaire was sent by email to the 18 recognized Fish Habitat 
Partnerships, asking nine questions about their working relationships with Landscape 
Conservation Cooperatives.  The purpose was to gather information that will help to encourage 
collaboration among FHPs and LCCs.   
 
Fourteen FHPs returned the completed questionnaire.  The results are compiled below.  In 
summary, 11 of the 14 FHPs reported that they had had formal communication with one or 
more LCCs.  Six FHPs are represented on LCC steering committees or other governance bodies.  
FHPs reported that they collaborated with LCCs on 4 projects involving financial contributions 
from LCCs or other sources; some of the projects involved multiple FHPs and LCCs. 
 
Full responses to two open-ended questions are shown below, very lightly edited.  In general 
FHPs expressed willingness to collaborate with LCCs, and highlighted successful collaboration.  
A lack of awareness of FHPs by the LCCs, and a lack of communication between FHPs and LCCs 
were cited as problems to be overcome. 
 
 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


2 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Responses to Questions 4, 5, 6, and 7 
 


 Formal Official Joint projects with Communicated FHP 


Summary of responses to Question 4:  Have representatives of your FHP had formal 
communication (meetings, conference calls, etc.) with LCC representatives to discuss common 
issues? 
 
No direct communication with LCCs – 3 FHPs 
Communication with one LCC – 7 FHPs 
Communication with 2-4 LCC – 4 FHPs 
 
Appalachian LCC – 2 FHPs  
Desert LCC – 1 FHP 
Gulf Coastal Plain and Ozarks LCC – 1 FHP 
Gulf Coast Prairie LCC – 2 FHPs 
North Atlantic LCC – 2 FHPs 
Northwest Interior Forest LCC – 1 FHPs 
Pacific Islands Climate Change Cooperative – 1 FHP  
Plains and Prairie Pothole LCC – 2 FHPs  
South Atlantic LCC – 2 FHPs 
Southern Rockies LCC – 1 FHP 
Upper Midwest-Great Lakes LCC – 1 FHPs 
Western Alaska LCC – 1 FHP 


 


Summary of responses to Question 5:  Is your FHP officially represented on LCC governance or 
technical bodies?  
 
No representation – 8 FHPs 
Steering committee (primary or alternate) – 5 FHPs 
Partnership committee – 3 FHPs 
Science / technical committee – 4 FHPs 
Communications committee – 2 FHPs 
Other indirect representation – 2 FHPs 
 
Appalachian LCC – steering committee (2) 
Gulf Coastal Plan and Ozarks LCC – partnership committee & communications committee 
Gulf Coast Prairie LCC – steering committee (2) & science committee 
North Atlantic LCC – technical committee 
Northwest Interior Forest LCC – steering committee (alternate) & science committee 
Plains and Prairie Pothole LCC – technical team 
South Atlantic LCC – partnership committee (2) & communications committee 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


3 


 


 communication? representation on 
LCC bodies? 


LCCs? science needs to 
LCCs? 


Atlantic Coastal 
Fish Habitat 
Partnership 


 North Atlantic LCC 


 South Atlantic LCC 


 Peninsular Florida 
LCC 


 South Atlantic LCC 
partnership 
committee 


 North Atlantic LCC 
technical 
committees 


 North Atlantic 
LCC 


 South Atlantic 
LCC 


Consultation on 
development & 
science needs 


 North Atlantic LCC 


 South Atlantic LCC 


 Appalachian LCC 


 Gulf Coastal 
Plain/Ozarks LCC 


Face to face meetings 


California Fish 
Passage Forum 


None None None None 


Desert Fish 
Habitat 
Partnership 


 Desert LCC 


 Southern Rockies 
LCC 


None None  Southern Rockies 
LCC 


FWS Regional 
meeting 


Eastern Brook 
Trout Joint 
Venture 


 Appalachian LCC 


 North Atlantic LCC 


 Appalachian LCC 
steering 
committee, 
science & data 
workshop 
organization 


None  Appalachian LCC 
via the science 
needs workshop 


 North Atlantic LCC 
via submitting 
funding proposal, 
discussion at LCC-
NFHAP meeting, 
and submitting a 
list of science 
needs 


 
 


Formal 
communication? 


Official 
representation on 


LCC bodies? 


Joint projects with 
LCCs? 


Communicated FHP 
science needs to 


LCCs? 


Fishers & Farmers 
Partnership for 
the Upper 
Mississippi River 
Basin 


 Plains & Prairie 
Potholes LCC 


None  Plains & Prairie 
Potholes LCC 


$115K project to 
develop a 
standardized, 
incremental, & 
sustainable  
monitoring 
strategy for habitat 
restoration in the 
UMR Basin 
 
$130K project with 
Midwest FHPs to 
use monitoring 
data to drive 
conservation 
decisions 


 Plains & Prairie 
Potholes LCC 


Indirect 
communication 
through Midwest 
Science Advisory 
Network 


Great Lakes Basin 
Fish Habitat 
Partnership 


 Upper Midwest-
Great Lakes LCC 


None  Plains & Prairie 
Potholes LCC 


$130K project with 


 Plains & Prairie 
Potholes LCC 


Indirect 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


4 


 


Midwest FHPs to 
use monitoring 
data to drive 
conservation 
decisions 


communication 
through Midwest 
Science Advisory 
Network 


Great Plains Fish 
Habitat 
Partnership 


 Plains and Prairie 
Pothole LCC 


 Plains and Prairie 
Pothole LCC 
technical team 


Midwest NFHP 
coordinator is on 
Plains & Prairie 
Pothole LCC steering 
committee 


 Plains and 
Prairie Pothole 
LCC 


$150K plus $130K 
project with 
Midwest FHPs to 
use monitoring 
data to drive 
conservation 
decisions 


 Plains and Prairie 
Pothole LCC 


Participation on 
technical team 


Hawaii Fish 
Habitat 
Partnership 


 Pacific Islands 
Climate Change 
Cooperative 


None None  Pacific Islands 
Climate Change 
Cooperative 


Informal meetings to 
discuss climate 
change and 
restoration planning 
held between PICCC 
and FWS habitat 
programs 


 
 
 


    


 
 


Formal 
communication? 


Official 
representation on 


LCC bodies? 


Joint projects with 
LCCs? 


Communicated FHP 
science needs to 


LCCs? 


Kenai Peninsula 
Fish Habitat 
Partnership 


None None None  Northwest Interior 
Forest LCC 


Conversations with 
interim coordinator 
regarding data and 
science needs 


Mat-Su Basin 
Salmon Habitat 
Partnership 


 Northwest Interior 
Forest LCC 


 Northwest 
Interior Forest 
LCC science 
committee, 
alternate for 
steering 
committee 


 


None to date.  Will 
seek to partner 
with Northwest 
Interior Forest LCC 
on development of 
its science plan 


None to date.  Will 
provide input to the 
Northwest Interior 
Forest LCC’s science 
needs assessment 


Ohio River Basin 
Fish Habitat 
Partnership 


Indirect 
communication 
through Midwest 
Science Advisory 
Network 


None  Plains & Prairie 
Potholes LCC 


$130K project with 
Midwest FHPs to 
use monitoring 


 Plains & Prairie 
Potholes LCC 


Indirect 
communication 
through Midwest 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


5 


 


data to drive 
conservation 
decisions 


Science Advisory 
Network 


Reservoir 
Fisheries Habitat 
Partnership 


 Gulf Coast Prairie 
LCC 


 Gulf Coast Prairie 
LCC steering 
committee & 
science 
committee 


None  Gulf Coast Prairie 
LCC  


Science forum held in 
February 2012 


Southeast Aquatic 
Resources 
Partnership 


 South Atlantic LCC 


 Gulf Coast Prairie 
LCC 


 Gulf Coastal Plain 
and Ozarks LCC 


 Appalachian LCC 


 South Atlantic LCC 
partnership 
committee and 
communications 
committee 


 Appalachian LCC 
steering 
committee 


 Gulf Coast Prairie 
LCC steering 
committee 


 Gulf Coastal Plain 
and Ozarks LCC 
partnership 
committee and 
communications 
committee 


 South Atlantic 
LCC 


 Gulf Coast 
Prairie LCC 


Through LCC and 
Multistate 
Conservation Grant 
funding, 
developing 
hydrologic 
information for the 
South Atlantic 


 South Atlantic LCC 


 Gulf Coast Prairie 
LCC 


 Gulf Coastal Plain 
and Ozarks LCC 


 Appalachian LCC 
Science forums, 
steering committee 
meetings, 
partnership 
committee meetings. 


Southwest Alaska 
Salmon Habitat 
Partnership 


 Western Alaska 
LCC 


 


None.  Currently 
NGOs, in general, are 
not represented on 
LCC governance 
boards. 


None  Western Alaska 
LCC 


 
Responses to Question 8:  What are the most effective ways for FHPs to engage with LCCs?  


 
Atlantic Coastal FHP 
LCCs should have representation at FHP meetings to help align commonalities in goals and objectives.  
Representation on steering committees and science working group teams would be advisable, but it is 
not necessary as long as the LCC coordinators had opportunities for input at regular partnership 
meetings and in the development of strategic plans and related guidance documents.  FHP 
representatives should be engaged with LCC coordinators at their planning meetings and should be 
included in partnership project coordination efforts affecting fish habitat conservation within their 
regions. 
 
California Fish Passage Forum 
The Forum needs to establish formal discussions and planning with LCCs in California.  We attended the 
initial LCC meeting in California and introduced ourselves but have not heard anything from LCC 
representatives about their activities or interest in working with us specifically. 
 
Desert FHP 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


6 


 


Having a DFHP representative on the LCC science work teams would be the most effective way for FHPs 
to engage with LCCs, although the other two choices would work as well.  We could also have a DFHP 
committee member give a DFHP presentation at a LCC meeting. 
 
Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture 
Where and when possible, via participation on LCC steering committees and representation on science 
work teams.  FHP participation needs to occur at both levels and should be done in a FHP-coordinated 
manner.  Participation at the LCC Steering Committee level helps to guide the overall effort ensure that 
aquatic resources (habitats) are identified as priority areas of concern / priority areas for LCC-sponsored 
research/ science and participation on the science work teams allows for specific FHP science needs to 
be identified / incorporated into RFPs and addressed via LCC-sponsored efforts. 
 
Fishers & Farmers Partnership 
All of these ways (steering committee representation, science work teams, meetings with LCC science 
coordinators) are effective for FHPs to engage with LCCs.  We are open to LCCs visiting/working with us 
and we hope to engage on their steering committees. 
 
Great Lakes Basin FHP 
We are still in the informative stages, as a Partnership, in learning more about the LCC that we overlap 
with, and vice versa. We do see an opportunity and value-addedness of our FHP to the LCC, and vice 
versa.  The GLBFHP Steering Committee Co-chairs have submitted a request to the Upper Midwest Great 
Lakes LCC Steering Committee for an opportunity to engage with the LCC's Steering Committee, and if 
deemed appropriate, we would request representation on the LCC's Steering Committee.  Also, we have 
had similar communications with the Upper Midwest Great Lakes LCC's Science Coordinator, to learn 
more about opportunities for our GLBFHP's Science and Data Committee to engage and contribute, and 
vice versa. 
 
Great Plains FHP 
Recognition that LCC's and FHP's should be integrated with involvement of the FHP's at both the 
Technical and Steering Committee level.  The roles are complementary with the LCC's developing the 
science needed to help deliver Strategic Habitat Conservation being done by the FHP's and the Joint 
Ventures. Sharing of the science needs of the FHP with the LCC development of their landscape level 
strategy. 
 
Hawaii FHP 
Regular interaction with LCC Science Coordinators to ensure the technical products that are needed for 
effective aquatic habitat restoration planning are identified and addressed by the LCCs. 
 
Kenai Peninsula FHP 
Outreach by LCCs to incorporate science and data needs of fish habitat partnerships. 
 
Mat-Su Basin Salmon Habitat Partnership 
Science work teams in development of science needs and science coordinators in development of RFPs 
 
Ohio River Basin FHP 
Meetings with LCC science coordinators would be good. 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


7 


 


 
Reservoir FHP 
FHP reps need to have an active role in LCC governance and/or Science Teams to be relevant.  Aquatics 
have not been a focal point of the LCC's and for this to change, FHP representatives need to be actively 
engaged. 
 
Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnership 
For our Partnership, LCC participation on the science and technical committee would probably be the 
most effective. Partnership participation on LCC RFP review committee.  Opportunity of Partnership 
review of LCC policy and technical documents. 
 
Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership 
Varies according to the situation, but all of the above can work (steering committee representation, 
science work teams, meetings with LCC science coordinators).  It is too soon to know the best ways, and 
there may not be one most effective way. 
 
 
Responses to Question 9:  Additional information, e.g. positive working relationships, problems 
encountered, suggestions for effective engagement  
 
Atlantic Coastal FHP 
The LCCs provide an opportunity for partnerships between partnerships, and connectivity across 
boundaries between FHP regions.  Although we have begun to engage LCCs in our partnership efforts, 
we have not formalized much in the way of connectivity.   This is changing and ACFHP will be working 
more closely and collaboratively with LCCs in the coming years. 


 
California Fish Passage Forum 
The Forum may need to reach out to the LCC again if NFHAP thinks the relationship is useful or 
necessary.  We will discuss this with the Governance Committee and we will act accordingly.  It appears 
the LCCs here are unaware of the Forum and its activities. 
 
 
Desert FHP 
DFHP sees a potential for the LCCs because the LCCs could help DFHP monitor effectiveness of habitat 
restoration projects, provide staff and funding, help identify funding sources, and create synergy 
between different groups.   
 
The problem that DFHP has encountered with LCCs is inadequate communication.  We don't know what 
the LCCs are doing, if they are established, if they have an RFP, if they have a steering committee, etc.  
The DFHP coordinator has sent the 5 LCCs that overlap with DFHP's geographic range coordinators 
information on DFHP including annual reports, strategic plan, newsletters, etc.  The DFHP coordinator 
also asked the LCC coordinators to send any information they had on their LCC and to keep DFHP in the 
loop of upcoming meetings, RFPs, funding opportunities, etc., and nothing has been sent.   
 
Both DFHP and the LCCs could do a better job at including each other in upcoming meetings, 
teleconferences, RFPs, and funding opportunities.  We could make sure someone is at the LCC meeting 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


8 


 


from DFHP.  DFHP's science and data committee could be more involved with the LCCs.  DFHP could 
invite LCC coordinators to the DFHP annual meeting and have them give a presentation on their LCC.  
 
Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture 
We have positive working relationships with the LCCs that overlap our boundary.  We have received 
some assistance from the Appalachian LCC in the form of website support.  However, we could benefit 
from science / research support from the LCCs on EBTJV priority science needs. 


 
Fishers & Farmers Partnership 
Other than our monitoring plan that was funded by the PPP LCC, Fishers & Farmers hasn't had much 
communication from the LCCs.  We were hoping to engage with more of them and maybe even work on 
projects together.  It never hurts to network and find more funding opportunities for fish and wildlife 
habitat.  In the Midwest, 5 or 6 of our Fish Habitat Partnerships get together on conference calls with 
our Midwest Coordinator and work together on initiatives.  Our Midwest Coordinator would be an 
excellent person to engage with the LCCs in the Midwest.   
 
As a FWS employee I haven't had much communication from the LCCs either.  We've heard more from 
our partners about the LCCs than from in our own agency. However, Fishers & Farmers Partnership will 
also strive for more effective engagement with the local LCCs.   


 
Great Lakes Basin FHP 
To date, all of our interactions with the LCCs have been very positive.  We really do not have more 
feedback to provide because we are in the early stages of our engagement with the LCCs. 
 
Great Plains FHP 
The relationship between the Plains and Prairie Pothole LCC and the Great Plains and other Midwest 
FHP's is exactly what it should have been designed into each of the LCC's. 
 
The relationship between all of the FWS's programs and initiatives such as LCC's, FHP's, Joint Ventures, 
Fish Passage, and others, should be integrated to complement each other for the FWS mission rather 
than try to stand on their own.  Then with these developed in concert with the Partners we have 
including the States, Tribes, NGO's are a recipe for success.  If we develop those linkages, the potential 
value is more than can be comprehended. 
 
Hawaii FHP 
In our region, the PICCC is staffing up and its capacity for providing technical products to assist on-the-
ground aquatic habitat conservation appears to be increasing.  PICCC scientists are available for 
consultation and informal interaction. 
 
Downscaling and modeling at the scale of specific islands is not expected to be feasible in the near term; 
therefore much of the technical assistance from PICCC is focused on identifying the range of uncertainty 
associated with potential changes to aquatic ecosystems in response to changing precipitation patterns 
and the potential effects of sea-level rise on estuarine and coastal wetland habitats. 
 
Mat-Su Basin Salmon Habitat Partnership 
LCCs are generally not informed about FHPs; need to establish this connection more formally. 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 11c 


 


9 


 


 
Reservoir FHP 
I am a long-time acquaintance/friend of the GCPLCC Coordinator.  This allowed the Reservoir 
Partnership to get its "foot in the door." Scott Robinson (SARP) and I serve on the Steering Committee 
and Science Team.  SARP was awarded a single project on in-stream flow during the first round of GCP 
funding.  SARP and RFHP worked together to secure this funding.  I am currently attempting to get 
involved with the Gulf Coastal Plains and Ozarks LCC.  We have contacted FWS Regional Director Cindy 
Dohner and plan to attend an upcoming Steering Committee meeting. 
 
Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnership 
Climate change was identified in the Strategic Plan of our Partnership as a significant threat to fish 
habitat, and working with the Western Alaska LCC was identified as a strategy for addressing that threat, 
specifically: 


1. Collaborate with the Western Alaska Landscape Conservation Cooperative (LCCs) 
2. Inform LCC research needs assessment to address priorities of the Partnership 
3. Develop programs and projects in response to identified needs.  


 
Given the overlapping geographies of partnerships with LCC's we suggest some coordination of funding.  
Our partnership has about $100,000 available for science projects related to habitat protection.  If there 
is some way to leverage LCC project funding with NFHAP funding both may be able to achieve more.  
LCCs could incorporate needs of the Partnership in their RFPs and include a Partnership representative 
on the review committee for LCC proposals. 
 
Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership 
SARP and LCC staffs have worked hard to develop positive relationships with the LCCs in our region, and 
it seems to be producing positive results.  As LCCs form and begin to mature, there is a need to better 
define the role of LCCs, FHPs, Joint Ventures, etc., They should work together to advance conservation, 
but for each group and all groups to be effective, LCCs should focus more on bringing it all together and 
identifying opportunities for synergy among disciplines or partners.  They should be filling gaps and 
addressing the science needs already identified by FHPs and JVs, rather than working so much on 
developing "their own" science needs; that seems to be a step back in some ways rather than a step 
forward.  In most cases it is all the same people representing the same core organizations, regardless of 
whether they are interacting within a FHP or LCC, and the science needs identified have not changed 
much since two or three years ago when they went through a similar process with FHPs or JVs.  As the 
roles of each organization become better defined, interaction will be easier and more efficient for all 
involved.     








 in


NOAA HABITAT BLUEPRINT
A framework to improve habitat for fisheries, marine life, and coastal communities


VISION
Healthy habitats that sustain resilient and thriving marine 
and coastal resources, communities, and economies.


OUTCOMES
•	 Sustainable	and	abundant	fish	populations
•	 Recovered	threatened	and	endangered	species
•	 Protected coastal and marine areas and habitats at risk
•	 Resilient coastal communities
•	 Increased coastal/marine tourism, access, and recreation


U.S. Department of Commerce  |  National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration


                                                                                                     


PURPOSE
The	Habitat	Blueprint	provides	a	forward-	
looking	framework	for	NOAA	to	think	and	act	
strategically	across	programs	and	with	partner	
organizations	to	address	the	growing	 
challenge	of	coastal	and	marine	habitat	loss	
and degradation. 


We	will	increase	the	effectiveness	of	our	 
efforts	to	improve	habitat	conditions	for	 
fisheries,	coastal	and	marine	life,	along	with	
other economic, cultural, and environmental 
benefits	our	society	needs	and	enjoys.


GUIDING PRINCIPLES
•	 Prioritize	resources	and	activities	
across	NOAA	to	improve	habitat	
conditions.


•	 Implement	innovative	place-
based	habitat	solutions	to		
address	coastal	and	marine		
resource	challenges.	


•	 Make	natural	resource		
management	decisions	and		
recommendations	in	an		
ecosystem	context	that		
considers	competing	priorities.


•	 Foster	and	leverage	partnerships.


•	 Integrate	and	improve	the		
delivery	of	habitat	science		
across	disciplines	to	facilitate		
conservation	actions.


•	 Anticipate	and	address	changes	
to	coastal	and	ocean	habitats	due	
to	development,	climate,	and	
other	pressures.


Why	do	we	need	the	Habitat	Blueprint	now?
Protecting	our	natural	infrastructure—our	global	life	support		
systems—is	vital	to	protecting	our	communities	and	their	economies	as	
well	as	fisheries	and	recreational	opportunities	along	our	coasts.	With	
continued	widespread	loss	and	deterioration	of	coastal	and	marine		
habitats,	we	are	in	danger	of	losing	this	infrastructure.	Congress	
has	charged	the	National	Oceanic	and	Atmospheric	Administration	
(NOAA)	with	protecting	habitat	for	fish,	threatened	and	endangered	
species,	marine	mammals,	and	other	natural	resources	within	the	
coastal	zone.	


Now	that	we	are	turning	the	corner	on	ending	overfishing,	we	need	to	
increase	the	sustainability	and	productivity	of	our	fisheries	by	focusing	
on	the	habitat	that	fish	need	to	spawn	and	grow,	as	well	as	protecting	the	
coastal	resources	on	which	our	communities	depend.	Recognizing	the	
need	for	more	concerted	efforts	to	protect	and	restore	habitat,	we	are	
developing	the	NOAA	Habitat	Blueprint	to	guide	our	future	actions.







                                                                                                     
What	is	the	Habitat	Blueprint	framework?
NOAA	is	developing	and	implementing	new	habitat-based	solutions	to	support	healthy	and	productive		
ecosystems.	We	will	expand	our	partnerships,	prioritize	our	activities,	and	direct	our	focus	to	better	under-
stand,	protect,	and	restore	habitat	for	the	benefit	of	our	living	marine	resources	and	coastal	communities.	


The	Habitat	Blueprint	consists	of	a	four-pronged	approach:	


Who	is	involved?
While	the	NOAA	Habitat	Blueprint	starts	with	
increasing	efficiencies	within	NOAA	and	across	its	
programs	and	offices,	it	is	also	designed	to	foster	
collaboration	across	federal,	state,	and	local	levels.	
We	plan	to	work	together	with	our	partners	on	
common	actions	in	priority	areas	and	improve		
delivery	of	habitat	science	to	encourage		
complementary	habitat	conservation	actions	along	
our	nation’s	coastline	and	for	our	marine		
environments.


ful	habitat	conservation.	We	will	remove	barriers	
and	seize	opportunities	to	improve	our	policies,	
regulations,	and	legal	authorities.	This	will	ensure	
that	habitat	considerations	are	an	integral	part	of	
marine,	coastal,	and	ocean	resource	management	
and	will	strengthen	NOAA’s	habitat	conservation	
focus	overall.


Who	is	involved?
While	the	NOAA	Habitat	Blueprint	starts	with	
increasing	efficiencies	within	NOAA	and	across	its	
programs	and	offices,	it	is	also	designed	to	foster	
collaboration	across	federal,	state,	and	local	levels.	
We	plan	to	work	together	with	our	partners	on	
common	actions	in	priority	areas	and	improve	de-
livery	of	habitat	science	to	encourage	complemen-
tary	habitat	conservation	actions	along	our	na-
tion’s	coastline	and	for	our	marine	environments.


What’s	next?
We	will	begin	to	develop	detailed	action	plans	for	
the	core	approaches	in	early	2012	while	also	shar-
ing	the	Habitat	Blueprint	with	our	partners.


For more information, please contact  
Helen McMillan at helen.mcmillan@noaa.gov or 
(301) 427-8613.


1) Implement regional habitat initiatives as		
immediate	opportunities	to	explore	new		
collaborative	approaches	for	habitat	science	and		
conservation.	These	initiatives	will	preserve	or		
improve	habitat	conditions	within	a	defined		
geographic	area	to	address	specific	challenges	to		
living	marine	and	coastal	resources.		


2) Establish geographic priorities to	focus	long-term	
habitat	science	and	conservation	efforts.	We	will		
direct	our	expertise,	resources	for	science,	and		
on-the-ground	conservation	efforts	in	targeted		
areas	to	maximize	our	investments	and	the	benefits	
to	marine	resources	and	coastal	communities.		


3) Implement a systematic and strategic approach 
to habitat science	to	inform	effective	decision-	
making.	We	will	prioritize	our	science	and	use	a	
more	integrative	approach	for	planning	and	
conducting	quality	habitat	science	that	is	directed	to	
priority	species	and	areas.	


4) Strengthen policy and legislation at	the		
national	level	to	enhance	our	ability	to	achieve	
meaningful	habitat	conservation.	We	will	remove	
barriers	and	seize	opportunities	to	improve	our	
policies,	regulations,	and	legal	authorities.	This	will	
ensure	that	habitat	considerations	are	an	integral	
part	of	marine,	coastal,	and	ocean	resource		
management	and	will	strengthen	NOAA’s	habitat		
conservation	focus	overall.


What’s	next?
In	early	2012,	we	will	begin	to	develop	detailed		
action	plans	for	the	approaches	above	as	well	as	
share	the	Habitat	Blueprint	with	our	partners.


For more information, please contact  
Helen McMillan at helen.mcmillan@noaa.gov 
or (301) 427-8616.


U.S. Department of Commerce  |  National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration


December 2011








National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 13 
 
 


 


Directions to April 18, 2012 Fishing for the Future Hill Reception  


When:   April 18, 2012 6-8pm 
 
Where: Rayburn House Office Building (Room B-340) 


Independence Avenue and South Capitol Street  
Washington, DC 20003 


 


Directions from Board meeting/TNC via metro orange line (Total travel is about 30 minutes): 


1. From the Ballston Metro Station take the Orange Line in the direction of New Carrollton ( about 


a 20 minute metro ride) 


2. Exit at Federal Center Metro Station.   


3. Head North on 3rd St. SW toward D St.  SW 


4. Turn right onto Independence Ave. SW 


5. Continue to 45 Independence Ave. SW (Rayburn building is on the right) 








 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 14 
 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Member and Staff Contact Information 


BOARD MEMBERS: 


Kelly Hepler – Chair/State Representative  


Alaska Department of Fish and Game 


333 Raspberry Rd.  


Anchorage, AK 99518-1599 


Ph:  907-465-6184 


Kelly.Hepler@alaska.gov  


 


Stephen G. Perry – Vice Chair/State 


Representative (Northeast AFWA) 


Chief, Inland Fisheries Division  


NH Fish and Game Department  


11 Hazen Drive  


Concord, NH 03301  


603-271-1745  


603-271-1438 (fax)  


stephen.perry@wildlife.nh.gov    


 


Mike Andrews  - At Large 


Vice President for Ecosystem Services  


The Nature Conservancy  


6114 Fayetteville Road, Suite 109  


Durham, NC 27713 


Ph:  919-484-7857 ext 117 


mandrews@tnc.org  


Dan Ashe – Federal Government 


Director  


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 


1849 C Street, N.W. 


Washington, DC 20240 


Dan_Ashe@fws.gov  


Douglass Boyd – At Large 
Sportfishing & Boating Partnership Council  
1945 Lockhill Selma #101 


San Antonio, TX 78213 


douglassboyd@yahoo.com  


 


 


 


 


 


Randy Fisher – At Large 


Executive Director 


Pacific States Marine Fisheries 


Commission 


205 SE Spokane Street, Suite 100 


Portland, Oregon 97202 


Ph:  503-595-3100  


Randy_Fisher@psmfc.org 


 


Brad Gentner – At Large 


Coastal Conservation Association 


Gentner Consulting Group 


9007 Eton Road 


Silver Spring, MD 20901 


Ph: 202-455-4424 


brad@gentnergroup.com  


 


Chris Horton – At Large 


National Assembly of Sportsmen’s 


Caucuses  


Regional Director 


249 Fletcher Lane 


Bismarck, AR 71929 


Ph: (501) 865-1475 


chris@sportsmenslink.org  


 


Joe Larscheid- State Government 


(Midwest AFWA) 


Iowa Department of Natural Resources 


502 East 9th St. 


Wallace Building   


Des Moines, IA 50319 


Ph:  515-281-5208 


joe.larscheid@dnr.iowa.gov   


 


D. Fred Matt- Indian Tribal  


Executive Director 
Native American Fish & Wildlife Society 


8333 Greenwood Blvd., Suite 260 


Denver, CO 80221 


Ph: 866-890-7258 


fmatt@nawfs.org  



mailto:Kelly.Hepler@alaska.gov

mailto:stephen.perry@wildlife.nh.gov

mailto:mandrews@tnc.org

mailto:Dan_Ashe@fws.gov

mailto:douglassboyd@yahoo.com

mailto:Randy_Fisher@psmfc.org

mailto:brad@gentnergroup.com

mailto:joe.larscheid@dnr.iowa.gov

mailto:fmatt@nawfs.org





 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 14 
 


 


Bob Mahood- At Large 


Executive Director 


South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 


4055 Faber Place Drive, Suite 201  


North Charleston, SC 29405  


Ph:  843-571-4366 


robert.mahood@safmc.net 


Stan Moberly- American Fisheries Society  


American Fisheries Society 


Northwest Marine Technology, Inc. 


955 Malin Lane, SW 


Olympia, WA 98501  


Ph:  907-736-2251 


stan.moberly@nmt.us,  


 Sam Rauch – Federal Government 


Assistant Administrator for Fisheries  


NOAA Fisheries Service 


1315 East West Highway  


Silver Spring, MD 20910 


sam.rauch@noaa.gov 


Ron Regan – State Representative (AFWA) 


Executive Director 


Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies 


444 North Capitol Street, NWWashington 


D.C.  20001 


Ph:  202-624-7890 


rregan@fishwildlife.org 


 


Gordon Robertson- At Large 


Vice President 


American Sportfishing Association 


225 Reinekers Lane, Suite 420  


Alexandria VA 22314 


Ph: 703-519-9691 


grobertson@asafishing.org 


Mike Stone  - State Government (Western 


AFWA) 


Chief of Fisheries 


Wyoming Game and Fish Department 


5400 Bishop Blvd. 


Cheyenne, WY 82006 


Ph:  307-777-4559 


Mike.Stone@wgf.state.wy.us  


Nick Wiley – State Representative 


(Southeast AFWA 


Executive Director 


FL Fish and Wildlife Conservation 


Commission 


620 South Meridian Street 


Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600 
nick.wiley@myFWC.com 


Krystyna Wolniakowski – National 


Fish and Wildlife Foundation 


Director, Western Partnership Office 


National Fish and Wildlife Foundation 


806 SW Broadway, Suite 750 


Portland, OR 97205  


Ph: 503-702-0245 


Wolniakowski@NFWF.ORG 


 


Chris Wood- At Large 


President and Chief Executive Officer 


Trout Unlimited 


1300 N. 17th St., Suite 500 


Arlington, VA 22209-2404 


Ph.  703-284-9405 


Anne Zimmermann- Federal 


Government 


USDA, Forest Service  


Director, Watershed, Fish, Wildlife, Air 


and Rare plants  


Syndey R. Yates Building  


201 14th Street, SW  Room 3SE  


Washington, DC  20250-1121 


azimmermann@fs.fed.us  
 


 



mailto:robert.mahood@safmc.net

mailto:stan.moberly@nmt.us

mailto:sam.rauch@noaa.gov

mailto:rregan@fishwildlife.org

mailto:grobertson@asafishing.org

mailto:Mike.Stone@wgf.state.wy.us

mailto:azimmermann@fs.fed.us





 


 


National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 


April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 14 
 


 


BOARD STAFF: 


Karen Abrams (Board Coordination) 


NOAA-Fisheries 


Office of Habitat Conservation 


1315 East West Highway 


SSMC3/Room 14214 


Silver Spring, MD 20910 


Ph:  301 427-8629 


Karen.abrams@noaa.gov 


 


Tom Busiahn (Fish Habitat Partnerships, 


Federal Caucus Coordination) 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 


ARLSQ 840 


4401 N. Fairfax Dr. 


Arlington, VA 22203 


Ph: 703/358-2056 


tom_busiahn@fws.gov 


 


Matt Menashes (Policy Advisor and State 


Agency Liaison) 


Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies 


444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 725 


Washington, DC 20001 


Ph:  202-624-3602 


mattm@fishwildlife.org 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Andrea Ostroff (Science and Data 


Coordination) 


U.S. Geological Survey 


12201 Sunrise Valley Drive  


Mail Stop 301 


Reston, VA 20192 


Ph: 703.648.4070 


aostroff@usgs.gov 


 
Ryan Roberts (Communications 


Coordination) 


Association of Fish and Wildlife 


Agencies 


444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 725 


Washington, DC 20001 
Ph:  202-6245851 


rroberts@fishwildlife.org 


 


Gary Whelan (Science and Data 


Coordination) 


Michigan DNR 


Mason Building, Eighth Floor 


P.O. Box 30446 


Lansing, MI 48909 


Ph: 517-373-6943 


whelang@michigan.gov 



mailto:tom_busiahn@fws.gov

mailto:mattm@fishwildlife.org

mailto:aostroff@usgs.gov

mailto:rroberts@fishwildlife.org






National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 3 


 


Rollout for National Fish Habitat Action Plan Revision  


 


Desired outcome:    


 Reactions from the Board on the key elements of a rollout plan to promote the release of 


the updated National Fish Habitat Action Plan. 


 


Rollout Background 


The revised National Fish Habitat Action Plan is due to be approved by the Board in April, released and 


available to the public shortly after.  The Communications Committee is developing a rollout plan to 


publicize the Action Plan. Communications efforts will target the following audiences through the 


specific strategies below.   


 


Key Elements of Proposed Rollout Strategy 


 Rollout Lead - (Ryan Roberts) assisted by NFHP staff.   


 Key Spokespeople - (Kelly Hepler ,Board members, Partnerships) 
 


 Target Audiences: Congressional members, Congressional staff, state fish & wildlife agencies, 
federal agencies, regional fishery management councils, conservation partners and public.  
 


 Key messages -  
The National Fish Habitat Action Plan is being revised for 2012 and while the mission and goals 
for the Plan remain the same (2006), the objectives have been revised.  The five new objectives 
are: 
 


 Achieve measurable habitat conservation results through strategic actions of Fish 
Habitat Partnerships that improve ecological condition, restore natural processes, or 
prevent the decline of intact and healthy systems leading to better fish habitat 
conditions and increased fishing opportunities. 
 


 Establish a consensus set of national conservation strategies as a framework to guide 
future actions and investment by the Fish Habitat Partnerships by 2013. 
 


 Broaden the community of support for fish habitat conservation by increasing fishing 
opportunities, fostering the participation of local communities – especially young 
people – in conservation activities, and raising public awareness of the role healthy fish 
habitats play in the quality of life and economic well-being of local communities. 
 


 Fill gaps in the National Fish Habitat Assessment and its associated database to 
empower strategic conservation action supported by broadly available scientific 
information, and integrate socio-economic data in the analysis to improve people’s 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 3 


 


lives in a manner consistent with fish habitat conservation goals. 
 


 Communicate the conservation outcomes produced collectively by Fish Habitat 
Partnerships as well as new opportunities and voluntary approaches for conserving fish 
habitat to the public and conservation partners. 
 


 Communication Products - (talking points, fact sheet , Web page(Plan and FAQ page), 
Facebook and Twitter posts) 
 


 Timeline – Release of Action Plan (April 2012), fact sheet created (April 2012), webpage for Plan 
created (April 2012) and FAQ section created (May 2012).  PowerPoint presentation and talking 
points created to explain what the plan does and how it is implemented (June 2012).  Hill 
briefings explaining how Plan revision and how it is being implemented coordinated through 
legislative team (2012).     
 


Proposed Board Specific Actions and Materials to Support Action Plan Rollout 


 Cover letters from Board members to state and NGO contacts. 


 Press release template created for NFHP Partners to utilize within their networks to announce 
the release of the revised Plan. . 


 Presentation of revised Action Plan at events in 2012 (e.g. River Rally in Portland, AFS in 
Minneapolis) 
 


Action Plan Send-out and printing logistics 


 Planned printing of 800 (minimum) copies (April 2012) 


 Copies mailed to all 50 State Directors and Fish Chiefs 


 Select Congressional mailings  


 Copies mailed to agencies represented on National Fish Habitat Board 


 Copies mailed to Fish Habitat Partnerships 


 Copies mailed upon request 


 Distributed broadly via website and PDF 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 







National Fish Habitat Board Meeting 
April 17-18, 2012 


Tab 3 


 


 


 


 





